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VISION AND MISSION STATEMENT 

 

 

VISION STATEMENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MISSION STATEMENT  

To become industry leader by instilling ethical and moral 

values, honest practices according to the Principles of 

Islam, offering the best innovative, competitive and 

quality products, ensuring direct benefit for all stake 

holders.  

 

o Deliver un-parallel value to customers by continuous 

striving and to exceed their expectations; 

o Under the guiding principles of Islam, to inculcate the 

culture of honest practices, ethical and moral values in 

our employees;  

o Special emphasis on workforce, health, safety, 

environment. Constant motivation of employees by 

fair benevolence; 

o To ensure reasonable growth and profits of the Group, 

to the shareholders on their investment; and 

o The Group will assert efforts towards the social 

development of society and be instrumental in the 

industrial growth of Pakistan. 
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   FRONTIER CERAMICS LIMITED 

NOTICE OF THE 39TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 

Notice is hereby given that 39th Annual General Meeting of Frontier Ceramics Limited will be held 
on Thursday, October 28, 2021 at 09:00 A.M at 29-Industrial Estate, Jamrud Road, Peshawar to 
transact the following business: 
 

1. ORDINARY BUNINESS 
 

1.1. To confirm the minutes of the Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held 
on February 8, 2021. 

1.2. To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the 
Company for the year ended June 30, 2021, together with the Chairperson’s Review 
Report, Directors Report and Auditors’ Report thereon. 

1.3. To appoint auditors and fix their remuneration for the year ending June 30, 2022. The 
present auditors’ M/s BDO Ebrahim & Co., Chartered Accountants, retire and being 
eligible have offered themselves for re-appointment. 

 
2. SPECIAL BUNINESS 

 
2.1. To consent and accord approval for alteration in Memorandum of Association of the 

Company by passing special resolution with or without modification. 

“Resolved That approval of shareholders be and is hereby accorded under section 32 
of the Companies Act, 2017 for alteration of Memorandum of Association to 
facilitates its sister concern/ related parties. Thus, the sub-clause 88 of clause no. III 
of the Memorandum of Association of the Company be and is hereby inserted which 
read to be as follows:   

To guarantee the performance of contracts, agreements, obligations or discharge of 
any debt of the company or on behalf of any other company or person or sister 
concerns or related parties, in relation to the payment of any financial facility 
including but not limited to loans, advances, letter of credit or other obligations 
through creation of any or all types of mortgages, charges, pledges, hypothecations, 
on execution of the usual banking documents or instruments or otherwise 
encumbrance on any or all of the movable and immoveable properties of the 
company, either present or future or both and issuance of any other securities or 
sureties by any mean in favor of banks, Non-Banking Finance Companies (NBFCs) 
of any financial institutions and to borrow money for purpose of the company.” 

 
2.2. To consent and accord approval for appointment of independent directors in 

compliance of clause 6 of Code of Corporate Governance by passing special 
resolution with or without modification. 

“Resolved That approval of shareholder be and is hereby accorded to fill the casual 
vacancies on the Board upon resignations of Ms. Pervez Aslam and Ms. Sana 
Khalid.” 
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“Further Resolved That in place of outgoing directors, appointment of Ms. 
Shabina Anjum and Mr. Muhammad Riaz Khan as independent directors of the 
Company are hereby approved.” 

 
 

2.3. To consent and accord post approval of transaction with Khalid & Khalid Holding 
(Pvt) Ltd an associated company in the financial year June 30, 2020 in compliance of 
Section 199(1) by passing special resolution with or without modification. 

“Resolved That, post approval of shareholder be and is hereby accorded under 
section 199(1) for advance of Rs.5,494,109 to associated company “Khalid & 
Khalid Holdings (Pvt) Ltd.” 

 
2.4. To consent and accord post approval of transaction with Rawal Industrial Equipment 

(Pvt) Ltd an associated company in the financial year June 30, 2019 in compliance of 
Section 208(1) by passing special resolution with or without modification. 

“Resolved That, post approval of shareholder be and is hereby accorded under 
section 208(1) of Companies Act 2017 for procurement of assets of Rs.10.5 million 
in the financial year 2019 from associated company “Rawal Industrial Equipment 
(Pvt) Ltd.” 

 
2.5. To consent and accord approval of transactions from/to with associated companies & 

undertaking   in compliance of Section 207, 208 and 199 of the Companies Act, 2017 
by passing special resolution with or without modification. 

“Resolved That the transactions from/to with associated companies and 
undertaking tabulated below during the year are approved by the Board shall be 
deemed to have been approved by the shareholders U/S 207 and / or 208 and/or 199 
of the Companies Act, 2017.”  
 
 
Name of Associated Companies & 
Undertakings 

Loan 
Received 

Loan 
Paid 

Advance 
Paid 

Advance 
Received 

Toyota Rawal Motors (Pvt) Ltd  7,121,941   
Nadeem Khalid 10,000,000 21,767,136   
Rawal Industrial Equipment (Pvt) Ltd  27,500,000   
Khalid & Khalid Holding (Pvt) Ltd   26,500,000 24,100,000 

 
“Resolved That the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby 
authorized to approve the transactions to be conducted with Related Parties on 
case-to-case basis for the financial year ending 30th June 2022.” 
 
“Resolved That the transactions approved by the Board shall be deemed to have 
been approved by the shareholders U/S 207 and / or 208 and/or 199 of the 
Companies Act, 2017 (if triggered) and shall be placed before the shareholders in 
the next Annual General Meeting for their formal ratification/approval U/S 207 and 
/ or 208 or 199 of the Companies Act, 2017 (if required).”  
 
“Further Resolved That the Company Secretary and CEO be and are hereby 
authorized to take and do, and/or cause to be taken or done, any /all necessary 
actions, deeds and things which are or may be necessary for giving effects to the 
aforesaid resolutions and to do all acts, matters, deeds, and things which are 
necessary, incidental /or consequential to fulfill all requisite legal, corporate and 
procedural formalities and any ancillary matters thereto.” 
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3. ANY OTHER BUSINESS 

To consider any other business with the permission of the Chair 
 
A statement under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act 2017 pertaining to the special 
business is being sent to the shareholders along with this notice. 
 

                                                     BY ORDER OF THE BOARD 

October 07, 2021                            (Company Secretary)  

 Peshawar 

 

NOTES: 

1. Participation in the AGM Proceeding via the video conference facility 
 
Due to current COVID-19 situation, the AGM proceedings shall be held via video 
conference facility only. Shareholders interested to participate in the meeting are requested 
to share below information at rehman.khan@forte.com.pk for their appointment and 
proxy’s verification by or before 4:30 p.m. on October 27, 2021. 
 

Name of 
Shareholder 

CNIC No. Folio No. / 
CDC No. 

Cell Number Email address 

 
    

 
Video conference link details and login credentials will be shared with those shareholders 
whose registered emails containing all the particulars are received on or before October 27, 
2021 by 4:30 p.m. Shareholders can also provide their comments and questions for the 
agenda items of the AGM on Rehman.khan@forte.com.pk or WhatsApp or SMS on Cell 
Number 0315-5601819 by October 27, 2021 by 4:30 p.m. Shareholders are required to 
mention their full name, CNIC number and Folio/CDS # for this purpose. 
 

2. Closure of Share Transfer Books 
 
The share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from October 22, 2021 to          

October 28, 2021 (both days inclusive). Transfers received in order at the office of the 

Company's Share Registrar M/s. CDC Share Registrar Services Limited, CDC House, 99-

B, Block-B, S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400 at the close of business on 

October 21, 2021 will be treated for the purpose of attendance at Annual General Meeting. 

 

3. Proxy 
 

A member entitled to attend and vote at this General Meeting is entitled to appoint a Proxy 

to attend, speak and vote in his place at the Meeting. Instrument appointing a proxy and the 

power of attorney or other authority under which it is signed or a notarial certified copy of 

the power or authority must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at least 

48 hours before the time of the meeting. 

 

CDC Account Holders will have to follow the under-mentioned guidelines as laid down in 

Circular No. 1 dated January 26, 2000 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission 

of Pakistan (SECP). 
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The SECP vide circular No. 25 of 2020 dated: August 31, 2020 has given regulatory relief 
to dilute impact of Coronavirus (COVID-19) for corporate sector. Accordingly this notice 
of AGM of the Company shall be dispatched to the shareholders through printed copies 
and shall be electronically available on the PUCARS system of the Pakistan Stock 
Exchange Limited and the Company’s website (www.forte.com.pk) under “Notices”. 
Shareholders are requested to provide the Company their email addresses at 
Rehman.khan@forte.com.pk if notice of the meeting is required through email. 
 
A. For Attending the Meeting 

a) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and / or the person 

whose securities are in group account and their registration detail is uploaded as per 

the Regulations, shall authenticate their identity by showing his/ her original 

National Identity Card (“CNIC”) or original passport at the time of attending the 

meeting. 

 

b) In case of corporate entity, Board of Directors’ resolution/power of attorney with 
specimen signature of the nominee shall be produced (unless provided earlier) at 
the time of the meeting. 
 

B. For Appointing Proxies 
 

a) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder is and / or the 
person whose securities are in group account and their registration detail is 
uploaded as per the CDC Regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per the above 
requirement. 
 

b) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and 
CNIC numbers shall be mentioned on the form. 

 
c) Attested copies of the CNIC or passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy 

shall be furnished with the proxy form. 
 

d) The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or original passport at the time of 
the meeting. 

 

In case of corporate entities, board of directors’ resolution/power of attorney with specimen 

signature of the nominee shall be submitted (unless provided earlier) along with the proxy 

form to the Company 

 

4. Changes in Members Addresses 

The Shareholders are requested to promptly notify change in their address, if any, to the 
Company’s Share Registrar. 

 
5. Availability of Financial Statements and Reports on Website 

The Annual Audited Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2021 has been 
uploaded on the website of the Company. 
 

6. Submission of copies of valid CNIC not provided earlier 
Individual Shareholders are once again reminded to submit a copy of their valid CNIC, if 
not provided earlier to the Company’s Share Registrar. 

 
7. Transmission of Audited Financial Statements / Notices Through Email 

In pursuance of the directions given by SECP vide SRO 787(I)/2014 dated: September 8,   
2014, those shareholders who desire to receive Annual Financial Statements in future 
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through email instead of receiving the same by Post are advised to give their formal consent 
along with their valid email address on a standard request form which is available at the 
Company’s website i.e. www.forte.com.pk and send the said form duly filled in and signed 
along with copy of his/her/its CNIC/Passport or other such information in the case of a 
body corporate to the Company’s share registrar. The Company’s Annual Financial 
Statements for the year ended June 30, 2021 is also being circulated to the shareholders 
through CD in compliance of section 223(6) of the Companies Act, 2017. 
 

8. Deposit of Physical Shares In CDC Account 
As per Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 every existing listed company shall be 

required to replace its physical shares with book-entry form in a manner as may be specified 

and from the date notified by the Commission, within a period not exceeding four years 

from the commencement of this Act, i.e., May 30, 2017. The Shareholders having physical 

shareholding are encouraged to open CDC sub - account with any of the brokers or Investor 

Account directly with CDC to place their physical shares into scrip less form. 

 

9. Postal Ballot 

Pursuant to Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations 2018, for the purpose of election of 

Directors and for any other agenda item subject to the requirements of section 143 and 144 

of the Companies Act, 2017, members holding in aggregate 10% or more shareholding will 

be allowed to exercise their right of vote through postal ballot, that is voting by post or 

through any electronic mode, in accordance with the requirements and procedure contained 

in the aforesaid Regulations. 

 

10. Unclaimed /Unpaid Shares and Dividends 

Shareholders, who may by any reason, could not claim their dividends/shares, if any, are 
advised to contact our Share Registrar at the address mentioned herein above, to 
collect/enquire about their unclaimed dividend/shares, if any. 
 
In compliance with Section 244 of the Companies Act 2017, after having completed the 
stipulated procedure, all such dividend outstanding for a period of 3 years or more from the 
date due and payable shall be deposited to the Federal Government in case of unclaimed 
dividend and incase of shares, shall be delivered to SECP. 
  

STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACT UNDER SECTION 134 (3) OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT 2017 READ WITH SRO 423/(i)/2018, DATED APRIL 3, 2018 

IN CONNECTION WITH SPECIAL RESOLUTION 
 
This statement sets out the material facts concerning the Special Business given in Agenda 
Item No. 2 of the Notice to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting of the Company 
to be held on Thursday, October 28, 2021 at 09:00 A.M.  

 
ANNEXURE – A (Agenda Item 2.1) 

 
APPROVAL FOR ALTERATION IN MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION OF 
THE COMPANY 
 
The Company needs to alter Memorandum of Association of the Company in order to 
facilitate its associated companies/ related parties for obtaining credit lines and financing 
from financial institutions.  
 
The Directors are interested in the resolutions only to the extent of their shareholding and / 
or common directorships.  
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ANNEXURE – B (Agenda Item 2.2) 
 
APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
The Company in compliance of section 166 of Companies Act 2017 and clause 6 of Code 
of Corporate Governance shortlisted two candidates for their appointment as independent 
director. In this regard the process of due diligence of the independent directors had also 
been completed and consent has already been received from those directors. In place of 
outgoing directors of the Company Ms. Sana Khalid & Ms. Pervez Aslam Mr. Muhammad 
Riaz Anjum and Ms. Shabina Anjum will be appointed as independent directors of the 
Company to fill the casual vacancies as well. In the past the company could not induct the 
independent director from PICG panel due to the Company’s CIB related issues. 
 
Brief Profile/experience of upcoming independent directors are as follow: 

  
Ms. Shabina Anjum recently retired from effective duties as Executive Director in the 
national Oil and Gas Development Company Limited (OGDCL) where her significant 
contributions include playing an instrumental role in devising: 
 

 The Company’s key strategic plans particularly its first ever business plan 
 Leading its first IPO 
 Spearheading its vision/mission exercise. 

 
Mr. Muhammad Riaz Khan has served as Managing Director/CEO of Oil & Gas. He has 
over 18 Years of Directorship Experience on the Boards of various Oil & Gas Exploration 
& Production & Mid/Down Stream Companies. He has authored/co-authored and 
presented several papers. He is an active member of Pakistan Engineering Council (PEC), 
and The Society of Petroleum Engineers (USA). 
 

The Directors are interested to the extent of compliance of section 166 of Companies Act 
2017.  

 
ANNEXURE – C (Agenda Item 2.3) 

 
POST APPROVAL OF TRANSACTION WITH KHALID & KHALID HOLDING 
(PVT) LTD IN FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 2020 
 
The Company had provided loan of Rs. 5,494,109 to Khalid & Khalid holding (Pvt) Ltd. (an 
Associated Company) in the year 2020 and has not obtained the approval of the members as 
required under section 199 of the Companies’ act 2017. Therefore, a post approval is sought 
from the members for the compliance of the section under reference. 
 
The Directors have no other interest except to the extent of their common shareholdings and/or 
their common directorship and to the extent of compliance of Section 199 of the Companies 
Act, 2017. 
 
ANNEXURE – D (Agenda Item 2.4) 
 
POST APPROVAL OF TRANSACTIONS WITH RAWAL INDUSTRIAL 
EQUIPMENT (PVT) LTD  
 
The Company procured fixed assets of Rs.10.5 million in the financial year 2019 from Rawal 
Industrial Equipment (Pvt) Ltd (an Associated Company). The pre-approval of which had 
already been obtained by the Company in its Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on May 
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28, 2016 that if required, Company may also procure and dispose of fixed assets from/to it 
sister concerns/related parties up to the extent of Rs.30 million in future.  
 
The Company has to place the matter in the AGM as the pre-approval of the shareholders was 
obtained prior to promulgation of the Companies Act, 2017, wherein provision of Section 208 
has been first time introduced in Companies Act 2017. Therefore, a post approval is sought 
from the members for the compliance of the section under reference. 
 
The Directors are interested in the resolutions only to the extent of their shareholdings and / 
or common directorships and to the extent of compliance of Section 208(1) of the Companies 
Act, 2017. 
 
ANNEXURE – E (Agenda Item 2.5) 
 
APPROVAL OF TRANSACTIONS FROM/TO WITH ASSOCIATED COMPANIES & 
UNDERTAKING   IN COMPLIANCE OF SECTION 207, 208 & 199 OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2017 

The Company’s shareholders accorded prior approval for the transactions in last AGM with 
its related parties for the year ended 30th June 2021 which were on an arm’s length basis as 
per the approved policy with respect to ‘transactions with related parties’ which were in the 
normal course of business. Many Directors may be deemed to be treated as interested in 
transactions with related parties due to their common directorships, shareholders further 
approval/ ratification is required for all transactions with the related parties as required u/s 207 
and / or 208 and / or 199 of the Companies Act, 2017, for the year ended 30th June 2021. 
 
Further, the Company may carry out further transactions with its related parties during the year 
ending 30th June 2022 on an arm’s length basis as per the approved policy with respect to 
‘transactions with related parties’ in the normal course of business. Many Directors may be 
deemed to be treated as interested in transactions with related parties due to their common 
directorships and/or shareholding. In order to promote good corporate governance and 
transparent business practices, the shareholders desire to authorize the Board of Directors to 
approve transactions with the related parties as required u/s 207 and / or 208 and / or 199 of 
the Companies Act, 2017, for the year ending 30th June 2022, which transactions shall be 
deemed to be approved by the Shareholders and will be ratified by the members in the next 
AGM. 
 
The Directors are interested in the resolutions only to the extent of their shareholdings and / 
or common directorships in such related parties. 
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2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

Sales - Net 2,828,952      1,115,224   781,835      664,996      426,926      408,447    

Gross Profit/(Loss) 272,083         112,722      16,915        105,659      30,922        31,125      

Expenses 122,668         78,746        79,680        42,919        25,517        29,436      

Profit/(Loss) Before Taxation 149,415         33,975        (62,765)       62,740        5,405          1,689        

Profit/(Loss) After Taxation 100,692         43,852        (88,474)       39,424        4,709          2,556        

Dividend % -                 -              -              -              -              -            

(Restated) (Restated)

0.12            0.07          

KEY OPERATING & FINANCIAL DATA - FOR LAST 6 YEARS

Frontier Ceramics Limited

-------------------- (Rupees in Thousands) --------------------

Earning/(Loss) Per Share (Rs.) 1.16            2.66               1.04            (2.34)           
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CHAIRPERSON ’S REVIEW REPORT 

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS, 

On behalf of the Board, I have great pleasure in presenting the Chairman’s review report for the year 

ended June 30, 2021. 

 ECONOMIC OVERVIEW 

The COVID-19 outbreak that began in early 2020 across the world transformed into an unprecedented 
demand shock, which had socio-economic consequences. In the backdrop of the Covid -19 challenges, 
the present government sustained the economic growth through enhancing productivity and increasing 
investment. Besides, virus containment measures, the government implemented a comprehensive set of 
measures including the largest ever economic stimulus package of billions for construction, an expansion 
of the social safety net to protect the vulnerable segments for the society and a supportive monetary policy 
stance along with targeted financial initiatives. These measures helped the economy in minimizing the 
negative impact of pandemic. In contrast to other world economies, Pakistan started witnessing recovery 
during the first half of FY2021 on the back of continued domestic economic activity due to measures 

taken by the Government. 

BUSINESS OVERVIEW 

 In the wake of the far-reaching effects of the coronavirus pandemic, your Company took the prudent 
decision early in the year to focus on volume-led competitive growth as the best means of maximizing 
value. The company registered a historic performance despite the inevitable and widespread disruption 

in a very challenging circumstance. 

 OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE 

Your Company registered a revenue of Rs. 2,829.95 million for the year which was higher by 153.67% 
compared to Rs. 1,115.22 million of previous year mainly due to increase of construction activity. The 
Company posted a gross profit of Rs. 272.08 million for the year as compared to gross profit of Rs. 112.72 
million during the same period last year. Distribution and selling expenses were 231.60% higher due to 
increased sales while administrative expense was 25.41% higher than last year due to overall impact of 
inflation. Other expenses were higher than last year due to higher provision for Workers’ Profit 
Participation and Workers’ Welfare Funds on the back of higher profit. Overall, the Company registered 
a remarkable net profit after tax of Rs. 100.69 million which translated to earning per share (EPS) of Rs. 

2.66 as against earning per share EPS of Rs. 1.16 of last year. 

BRAND STRATEGY 

FRCL has been working in enhancing the brand value of ‘FORTE’. A number of steps in this direction 

are helping us in 

creating demand for our products: 

HUMAN CAPITAL 

At FRCL, our people showed an unswerving resilience to the COVID-19 challenge, at the factories and 
offices. 

To address the health and safety concerns and ensure productivity of our employees deputed at various 
locations, we devised a two-stage approach that included general awareness programs and establishing 
stringent set of COVID-19 protocols on the guidelines of Government and available best practice 
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procedures. I would like to thank all our employees and partners for their understanding, cooperation and 
great efforts to support everyone’s well-being during this time. 

BOARD EVALUATION 

The evaluation of Board’s role of oversight and its effectiveness, in compliance with the requirement of 
the Code of Corporate Governance and the Companies Act, 2017, is continual process, which is appraised 

by the Board itself. The core areas of focus are: 

• Alignment of corporate goals and objectives with the vision and mission of the Company 

• Strategy formulation for sustainable operation 

• Board’s independence and 

• Evaluation of Board’s Committees performance in relation to discharging their responsibilities set out 

in respective terms of reference. 

Annual evaluation questionnaire developed in conformity with the Code of Corporate Governance is 
circulated to the Directors for performance evaluation. Strict level of confidentiality is exercised by the 
Company Secretary upon receipt of completed questionnaires. These are then evaluated to identify areas 
that require improvement and highlight differences of opinion, if any. For the financial year ended June 
30, 2021, the Board’s overall performance and effectiveness has been assessed as ‘Satisfactory’. It is also 
important to highlight that during the year Board Committees (Audit Committee and Human Resource 
and Remuneration Committee) have marked a significant contribution in providing guidance and advise 

in their respective areas. 

BUSINESS RISKS AND CHALLENGES 

Pakistan has observed an upturn in its construction industry ever since the construction amnesty scheme 
was approved by the incumbent government. The continuity of the policies is upmost necessary to bring 

in stability. Further the following 

risk and challenges remains for the industry: 

• Slowdown in construction activity post expiry of amnesty scheme, 

• Rising gas tariff to increase input cost 

• Gas curtailment during winters in south region 

• Freight cost upsurge due to supply chain disruption in the wake of pandemic 

• Irrational tax burden on compliant companies 

• Changes in regulatory and duty structures 

• Frequent lockdowns 

• Increasing devaluation of pak currency and high inflation  

FUTURE OUTLOOK 

Efforts are being made to curtail the costs wherever possible and create a price efficient sales mix to 
maximize profitability, mitigate market risks, meet future challenges and maintain business growth. In 
this regard the Board of Directors of the Company reviewed the long term business plans of the company, 
later seconded by the respectable shareholders of the Company in Extra Ordinary General Meeting, and 
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decided in principal to avail the opportunity of initially acquiring land Off-CPEC Highway near Mianwali 
from a related party at very attractive payment terms over the period of five years.  

Keeping in view the conducive business environment, Directors feels that if the environment remains 
stable then in the next ten years Company shall be in a position to establish a large ceramic factory at the 

proposed location 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

Our thoughts go out to all those who have suffered from the effects of this terrible pandemic. Equally, we 
remain deeply thankful to all those front-line workers – including in our own business – who have worked 

tirelessly to help keep others safe and our economies moving forward. 

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I sincerely acknowledge and am thankful for the continued support 

of our shareholders, banks. customers, suppliers and employees. 
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Chairperson 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

The Directors have the pleasure in presenting to you the audited financial results of your Company for 
the year ended 30 June 2021. 

CHAIRPERSON REVIEW REPORT: 

The Chairperson review included in the Annual Report deals inter alia with the nature of business, 
performance of the Company, explanation of significant deviations from last year, future prospects and 

uncertainties. 

BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT: 

The FY2021 began in the midst of the most severe global health crisis experienced in modern history. 
Pakistan's economy, like rest of the world, though struggled to combat the economic consequences, but 
with a comprehensive set of measures including a construction package and supportive monetary policy 
stance along with targeted financial initiatives taken by the Federal Government resulted timely 
resumption of economic activities and helped the economy in lessening the negative impact of the 
pandemic. In contrast to other world economies, Pakistan started witnessing recovery during the first half 
of FY2021 on the back of continued domestic economic activity due to the above stated measures along 
with a smart lockdown policy. Pakistan’s GDP has always been largely dependent on the growth of 
construction sector which contributes ~19.3% to the country’s GDP. As a result of special emphasis by 
the Federal Government on this sector, associated industries also witnessed an uptick in demand. Your 
Company turned out to be a major beneficiary as demand for building materials including tiles have 

shown a positive trend during the year. 

FINANCIAL RESULTS: 

A comparison of the operating results of the Company for the financial year ended June 30, 2021 against 

the same period last year is shown hereunder: 

2021 2020 

(Rupees in Millions) 
Turnover – net 2,828.95 1,115.22 

Gross profit 272.08 112.72 

Operating Profit  177.79 67.89 
Finance cost 32.27 36.83 

Profit before taxation 149.42 33.98 
Profit after taxation 100.69 43.85 
Earnings per share (Rs.) 2.66 1.16 

 

The FY-2021 started under the clouds of uncertainty as the two months long Covid-19 lockdown started 
to release. Post lockdown, the economy started a gradual recovery which restored confidence and the 
construction industry witnessed surge in its demand. Hence, your Company registered an unprecedented 
153.67% growth in revenue. Further, being a high fixed costs-based industry, with an increase in the 
utilization levels of production, better absorption of fixed costs resulted in economies of scale and the 
gross margins achieved at 9.61%. The Company closed the financial year with profit before tax of Rs 
149.42 million and net profit after tax of Rs. 100.69 million, being the highest ever in the history of the 

Company. 
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND FINANCIAL POSITION: 

Your company’s self-generated liquidity is its biggest strength. This provides your management with 
flexibility to capitalize on further cost-saving ventures and gives the company’s stakeholders and 
vendor’s confidence. 

AS REGARDS AUDITORS’ QUALIFICATION 

GRATUITY 

 The provident fund facility has been initiated by the Company against staff retirement benefits as per the 
requirements of law of The Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Industrial and Commercial Employment (Standing 
Orders) Act, 2013 with effect of January 01, 2021. Therefore, the Company does not need to provide any 
provision for gratuity for the previous period since June 2008 which is the takeover date of the Company 
of the present management. However, the Company can sustain the risk of the penalty, if any, provided 
under the law and few claims under contingencies as stated in Note. 28.1 have been disclosed in the 
financial statements. 
 
Payment against provident fund shall be disbursed, to all permanent and regular employees, as per the 
registered provident rules and regulations. 
 
CORPORATE AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY: 

The Company, being a responsible corporate citizen of Pakistan, neither lay off any of its staff/workers 

nor reduced their salaries/wages   during the lock-down period due to pandemic COVID-19.  

HEALTH, SAFETY & ENVIRONMENT: 

The Company believes in creating a sustainable and safe working environment for our people and 
contractors. Your Company was quick to implement appropriate measures and strict compliance was 
ensured throughout the pandemic. Measures such as face mask, social distancing, sanitizer gates, thermal 
check and work from home facility helped the Company in ensuring the safety of employees and business 
continuity. We are proud to state that all the employees, workers and contractors are vaccinated against 

COVID-19. 

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES 

The Company is exposed to certain inherent risks and uncertainties. However, we consider the following 
as key risks: 

• Fluctuations in gas pressures / lower quality of gas / curtailment of gas; 

• Slowdown in construction industry post expiry of construction amnesty scheme; 

• Non absorption of fixed costs in case of lock-down due to COVID-19 pandemic; 

• Highly price sensitive market due to increased local competition; 

• Continued increase in input costs, specifically energy costs. 

Currency exchange risk  

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 

The company adheres to maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions 
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
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estimates that are reasonable and prudent; design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that are operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a 

true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

AUDITORS: 

The present auditors M/s BDO Ebrahim & Co, Chartered Accountants, retire and being eligible, have 
offered themselves for re-appointment. On the proposal of Audit Committee, the Board of Directors has 
recommended the re-appointment of the retiring auditors for the year ending 30 June 2022, for approval 

of the shareholders in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. 

COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 

The Company Management is fully cognizant of its responsibility as recognized by the Companies Act, 
2017 provisions and Code of Corporate Governance issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission 

of Pakistan (SECP). The following comments are 

acknowledgement of Board’s commitment to high standards of Corporate Governance and continuous 

improvement: 

1) The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly its state of 
affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity; 

2) Proper books of account have been maintained by the Company; 

3) Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of these financial 

statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment; 

4) International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in 

preparation of these financial statements; 

5) The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored. 
The process of monitoring internal controls will continue with the objective to further strengthen the 
controls and improve the system; 

6) There are no significant doubts upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern; 

7) A summary of key operating and financial data of the Company of the last six years is annexed in the 

report on page No.10  

8) There has been no material departure from the best practices of Corporate Governance, as detailed in 
the Regulations of Rule Book of Pakistan Stock Exchange. 

9) The Company operates a contributory provident fund scheme for all permanent employees. The value 
of Provident Fund Investments as per the audited accounts of FRCL Provident Fund Trust for the year 

ended June 30, 2021 was Rs. 6.27 million (2020: Rs. 0 million): 

10) There are no outstanding statutory payments due on account of taxes, levies and charges except as 

those disclosed in these financial statements. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS & ITS COMMITTEES: 

The Board: 

The Board comprises of one independent Directors (including one female director), four non-executive 
Directors and two executive Director. 
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During the year, five meetings of Board of Directors (BOD) were held. All the meetings were held in 
Pakistan. The attendance and the composition of the Board of Directors are as follows: 

 
Name of Director 

 
Designation 

No. of 
meeting
s 

Mrs. Pervez Aslam Independent Director & 
Chairperson 

5 

Mr. Omer Khalid Non-Executive Director 5 

Mr. Javid Khalid Non-Executive Director 5 

Mr. Zia Khalid Executive Director 5 

Ms. Numrah Khalid Executive Director 5 
Mrs. Sana Khalid Non-Executive Director 5 
Mrs. Shazia Khalid Non-Executive Director 5 

 

Board Audit Committee: 

The Board Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities, primarily in 
reviewing and reporting financial and non-financial information to share-holders, systems of internal 
control and risk management and the audit process. It has the autonomy to call for information from 
management and to consult directly with the external auditors or advisors as considered appropriate. The 
Chief Financial Officer regularly attends the Board Audit Committee meetings by invitation to present 
the accounts. After each meeting, the Chairperson of the Committee reports to the Board. The Committee 
comprises of two non-executive director and one executive director. 

During the year, four meetings of Board Audit Committee were held. The attendance and the composition 

of the Board of Directors are as follows: 

 
Name of Director 

 
Designatio

n 

No. of 
meetings 

Mrs. Sana Khalid Non-Executive Director 4 

Ms. Numrah Khalid    Executive Director 4 

Mrs. Shazia Khalid Non-Executive Director 4 

 

Human Resource and Remuneration Committee: 

The Committee meets to review and recommend all elements of the compensation, organization and 
employee development policies relating to the senior executives’ remuneration. The CEO of the Company 
and the Head of HR of the Company attended the Human Resource and Remuneration Committee 
meeting. The Committee met twice during 2020-21 attended by all the members. The composition of the 
Committee is as follows: 

 
Name of Director 

 
Designatio

n 
Mr. Omer Khalid Non-Executive 

Director Mr. Zia Khalid Executive Director 

Mr. Javid Khalid  Non-Executive 
Director  
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DIVIDEND: 

The Board of Directors has not recommended any dividend for the financial year ended June 30, 2021.  

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING: 

Statements showing the pattern of shareholding as at June 30, 2021 required under Section 227 (2) (f) of 

the Companies Act, 2017 and the Code of Corporate Governance, is annexed to this report at Page No.81 

The Directors, CFO, Company Secretary, Head of Internal Audit and their spouses or minor children did 

not carry out any trade except CEO during the year. 

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

No material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have taken place 
between the end of the financial year and the date of the Report, except as disclosed in the financial 

statements. 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS: 

All the transactions with related parties are entered into at agreed terms in the normal course of business 
as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. The Company has fully complied with the best 
practices on transfer pricing as contained Act and Code. The details of all related party transactions were 
placed before the Audit Committee and upon its recommendation the same were approved by the Board 
of Directors. 

BUSINESS CONTINUITY PLANS: 

The Company recognizes the importance of a comprehensive Business Continuity Planning Programme 
that allows it to plan for and manage major business disruptions. All significant risks, possibilities for 
control and reduction are identified. The plan is regularly tested to ensure that it can be implemented in 
emergency situations and that the management and identified employees are aware of their respective 
roles. The range of events considered includes natural disasters, failure of equipment, 
government/political/legal actions, and changes in the financial and business climate. In addition to that, 
the remote disaster recovery sites have been adequately set up for or maintaining backup server and data 

in case our primary server encounters any issues. 

FUTURE OUTLOOK 

Efforts are being made to curtail the costs wherever possible and create a price efficient sales mix to 
maximize profitability, mitigate market risks, meet future challenges and maintain business growth. In 
this regard the Board of Directors of the Company reviewed the long term business plans of the company, 
later seconded by the respectable shareholders of the Company in Extra Ordinary General Meeting, and 
decided in principal to avail the opportunity of initially acquiring land Off-CPEC Highway near Mianwali 

from a related party at very attractive payment terms over the period of five years.  

Keeping in view the conducive business environment, Directors feels that if the environment remains 
stable then in the next ten years company shall be in a position to establish a large ceramic factory at the 

proposed location. 

Review of CEO’s Performance 

The performance of the CEO is formally appraised through the evaluation system which includes the 
performance of the business, the accomplishment of objectives with reference to profits, organization 
building, succession planning and corporate success. The remarkable performance of CEO is highly 

appreciated by the Board members. 
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION: 

The company has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of its Directors in 
accordance with the Companies Act, 2017 and the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) 
Regulations, 2019. The company does not pay remuneration to its non-executive directors including 

independent directors.  

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 

The Board of Directors appreciates all its stakeholders for their trust and continued support to the 
Company and hope that the same spirit of devotion shall remain intact in the future ahead to the 

Company.  

 

 

On behalf of the Board 

 
 

Nadeem Khalid                  Mrs. Pervez Aslam 
Chief Executive          Chairperson 
 

Date: October 07, 2021 
Peshawar 
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019 

 
The Frontier Ceramics Limited (the Ccompany) complied with the requirements of the Regulations, 
2019 in the following manner: 

 
1. The Total number of directors are seven as per following: 

a. Male: 3 
b. Female: 4 

 
2. The composition of Board of Directors (the Board) is as follows: 

 
Category Names 

Independent Director Mrs. Pervez Aslam 

Non-Executive Directors Mr. Omer Khalid 
Mr. Javaid Khalid  
Ms. Numrah Khalid  
Mrs. Sana Khalid 
Mrs. Shazia Khalid 

Executive Directors Mr. Zia Khalid 

 

3. The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director in more than seven listed 
companies, including this company (excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed holding companies where 
applicable). 

 
4. The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to 

disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures. 
 

5. The Board has developed a Vision/Mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies 
of the company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the date on which 
they were approved or amended has been maintained. 

 
6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken 

by board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations. 
 

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairperson and in her absence, by a director 
elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the 
Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of   Board. 

 
8. The Board of directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in 

accordance with the Act and these Regulations. 
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9. The Board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, including 
their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements of 
the Regulations. 

 
10. CFO and CEO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the Board. 

 
11. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below: 

 

a) Audit Committee 

Mrs. Sana Khalid Chairperson 
Ms. Numrah Khalid Member 
Mrs. Shazia Khalid Member 

 
b) HR and Remuneration Committee 

Mr. Omer Khalid Chairman 
Mr. Zia Khalid Member 
Mr. Javid Khalid Member 

 
12. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the 

committee for compliance. 
 

13. The frequency of meetings of the committees were as per following: 
 

a) Audit Committee: Four quarterly meetings were held during the year ended June 30, 2021. 
 

b) HR and Remuneration Committee: One meeting was held during the year ended June 30, 2021. 
 

14. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating 
under the quality control review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and 
registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their 
spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the Company and that the firm and all its partners are in 
compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted 
by the ICAP. 

 
15. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other 

services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the 
auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard. 

 
16. We confirm that all requirements of regulation 3,6,7, 8,32,33 and 36 of regulation have been complied with 

except 6 and 27: 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
\ 
 

 

Régulations Explantations 

6(1) 
It is mandatory that each listed company shall have at least two or one third 
members of the Board, whichever is higher, as independent directors. 
However, our Board consists of one independent director 

27 
We noted that there is no independent director on the Audit Committee as 
required by the Code, however Company has completed the due diligence on 
September 17, 2021 and has also communicated to SECP in this regard. 
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17. Explanation of no-compliance with the requirements, other than regulation 3,6,7, 8,32,33 and 36 are 
below. 

 
 
 
 

                     
 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
Nadeem Khalid                  Mrs. Pervez Aslam 
Chief Executive          Chairperson 
 
Date: October 07, 2021 
Peshawar; 
 

Régulations Explantations 

10 
Signifiant polices formulated are not approved by the board neither any 
mechanism is put in place for an annual evaluation of the Board’s own 
performance as per clause (x) of the code. 

18 & 19 
The Company has seven directors whereof one director is exempt from this 
requirement by virtue of his qualification and experience and two out the 
remaining six directors have obtained DTP certification 
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REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED 

IN LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019  

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of                
FRONTIER CERAMICS LIMITED for the year ended June 30, 2021 in accordance with the requirements 
of regulation 36 of the Regulations. 

 

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our 

responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s 

compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-

compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the 

Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the 

Regulations.  

As a part of our audit of the financial statements, we are required to obtain an understanding of the 

accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. 

We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks 

and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate 

governance procedures and risks. 
 

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the 

Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party 

transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the 

approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit 

Committee.    

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of 

Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the 

requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2021.

    
Further, we highlight below instances of non compliance with the requirements of the code as reflected in the 

note 16 & 17 in the statement of compliance. 
 

Regulations Explanation 

6(1) 

It is mandatory that each listed company shall have at least two or one third members 

of the Board, whichever is higher, as independent directors. However, we noted that 

currently Board consists of one independent director 

27 
We noted that there is no independent director on the Audit Committee as required by 

the Code. 

10 

Significant policies formulated are not approved by the board neither any mechanism 

is put in place for an annual evaluation of the Board’s own performance as per clause 

(x) of the code. 

18 & 19 

The Company has seven directors whereof one director is exempt from this 

requirement by virtue of his qualification and experience and two out the remaining 

six directors have obtained DTP certification 

 

ISLAMABAD        

                CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

DATED: October 07, 2021              Engagement Partner: Abdul Qadeer 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF FRONTIER 
CERAMICS LIMITED 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Qualified Opinion 
 
We have audited the annexed financial statements of FRONTIER CERAMICS LIMITED (the 
Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2021, and the 
statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in 
equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and 
we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our 
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit. 
 
Except for the possible effects of the matter described in Basis for Qualified Opinion section of 
our report, In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of 
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows 
together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards 
as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 
2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the 
Company's affairs as at June 30, 2021 and of the profit and other comprehensive income, the 
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended. 
 
Basis for Qualified Opinion 

 

During the year, with effect from January 01, 2021 the Company has opted provident fund for 
staff retirement benefits covering all permanent and regular employees as per registered 
provident fund rules and regulations. However, no provision for the past years has been 
accounted for staff retirement benefits with respect to gratuity till December 31,2020 which 
approximately amounts to Rs. 55 million since take over date of the Company.  

 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as 
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for 
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion. 
 
Key Audit Matters 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance 
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 
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context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, 
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters 
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. 

S. 
No 

Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit 

1. Revenue Recognition 

        The Company is engaged in the 
production and sale of ceramic tiles. 
 
The Company focuses on revenue as 

a key performance measure which 

could create an incentive for 

revenue to be recognized before the 

risks and rewards have been 

transferred, resulting in a significant 

risk associated with revenue from an 

audit procedure.                   

Due to the significant risk 
associated with revenue recognition 
and the work effort from the audit 
team, the recognition of revenue is 
considered to be a key audit matter. 
 
 
 

Our audit procedures included considering the 
appropriateness of the Company’s revenue 
recognition accounting policies and assessing 
compliance with the policies in accordance with 
the applicable financial reporting framework. 
 
 Control testing over the point of transfer of 

risk and rewards was supported by 
substantive audit procedures including, 
amongst others: 
 

 Performing analytical tests on the revenue. 
 

 Testing a sample of sales transactions 
around year end to ensure inclusion in the 
correct Period 

 

Testing of a sample of sales and trade 
receivables at year end by agreeing a sample of 
open invoices at year end to subsequent receipts 
from customers. 
 

2. 
Control environment relating to the financial reporting process and related IT 
systems 

 

The IT control environment relating 
to the financial reporting process 
and the application controls of 
individual IT systems have an 
impact on the selected audit 
approach. 
As the financial statements are 
based on extensive number of data 
flows from multiple IT systems, 
consequently the financial reporting 
control environment is determined 
as a key audit matter. 

Our audit procedures included evaluation of the 
financial reporting process and related control 
environment, as well as testing of the 
effectiveness of controls including general IT 
controls. Our audit procedures focused on 
testing the reconciliation and approval controls 
as well as on evaluating the administration of 
access rights. 
Our audit procedures extensively consisted of 
several substantive procedures as well as data 
analysis relating to the most significant balances 
on the statement of profit or loss and statement 
of financial position. 
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors Report Thereon 

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the annual report but does not include the financial statements and our 
auditors report thereon.  
 
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  
 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a 
material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard. 
 
Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the 
requirements of Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  
 
Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.  
 

Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
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not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditors report to the related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 
 
We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships 
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where 
applicable, related safeguards. 
 
From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are 
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits 
of such communication. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  
 
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion: 
 
a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 

2017 (XIX of 2017); 
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b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, statement of 

comprehensive income, the statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity 
together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 
2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns; 

 
c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the 

purpose of the Company’s business; and 
 
d) no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980(XVIII of 

1980). 
 
 
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors report is Abdul 
Qadeer. 
 

 

ISLAMABAD 

         BDO EBRAHIM & CO. 

DATED: October 07, 2021                             CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
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FRONTIER CERAMICS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2021

2021 2020

Note Rupees Rupees

ASSETS

NON CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Operating fixed assets 6 1,899,403,438      1,468,280,478     

Capital work in progress 7 306,728,967         58,575,025          

Investment property 8 600,782                632,402               

2,206,733,187      1,527,487,905     

Long term deposits 9 1,513,450             1,513,450            

Long term advances 10 321,515,475         9,515,079            

2,529,762,112      1,538,516,434     

CURRENT ASSETS

Stores, spares and loose tools 11 119,353,127         71,976,158          

Stock in trade 12 173,356,475         169,222,294        

Trade debts 13 6,890,929             2,492,995            

Short term lending 14 7,637,000             5,237,000            

Advances 15 140,948,639         94,775,632          

Tax refunds due from government 16 63,962,052           63,962,052          

Taxation - net 17 5,847,180             22,482,902          

Cash and bank balances 18 43,950,002           59,248,231          

561,945,404         489,397,264        

TOTAL ASSETS 3,091,707,516      2,027,913,698     

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital 19 378,738,210         378,738,210        

Discount on issue of right shares 20 (180,795,726)       (180,795,726)       

197,942,484         197,942,484        

21 1,278,770,679      884,642,163        

Unappropriated profit 205,298,738         88,331,457          

1,682,011,901      1,170,916,104     

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term financing 22 299,036,657         168,248,651        

Gas Infrastruture Development Cess 23 58,324,136           -                       

Deferred taxation 24 341,886,860         203,770,678        

699,247,653         372,019,329        

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 25 646,450,842         321,920,257        

Unclaimed dividend 3,189,224             3,189,224            

Current portion of GIDC payable 23 60,807,896           -                       

Mark up accrued 26 -                       79,001,984          

Short term borrowings 27 -                       80,639,335          

Current portion of long term financing -                       227,465               

710,447,962         484,978,265        

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 28 -                       -                       

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 3,091,707,516      2,027,913,698     

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Revaluation surplus on property, plant and 

equipment
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FRONTIER CERAMICS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

2021 2020

Note Rupees Rupees

Sales - net 29 2,828,952,434      1,115,223,677     

Cost of sales 30 (2,556,869,397)    (1,002,502,032)   

Gross profit 272,083,037         112,721,645        

Distribution cost 31 (40,776,510)         (12,297,009)        

Administrative expenses 32 (35,686,985)         (28,455,427)        

Other operating expenses 33 (17,826,369)         (4,083,674)          

Operating profit 177,793,173         67,885,535          

Other income 34 3,888,192             2,922,569            

Finance cost 35 (32,266,304)         (36,832,781)        

Profit before taxation 149,415,061         33,975,323          

Taxation 36 (48,722,853)         9,876,488            

Profit for the year 100,692,208         43,851,811          

Earnings per share - basic and diluted 37 2.66                      1.16                     

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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FRONTIER CERAMICS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE YEAR  ENDED JUNE  30, 2021

2021 2020

Rupees Rupees

Profit for the year 100,692,208     43,851,811       

Other comprehensive income for the year

Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment 578,033,224     -                    

Related deferred tax impact (167,629,635)    -                    

410,403,589     -                    

Total comprehensive income for the year 511,095,797     43,851,811       

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE                    DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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FRONTIER CERAMICS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

FOR THE YEAR  ENDED JUNE  30, 2021

Capital Revenue

Note

Balance as at July 01, 2019 378,738,210   (180,795,726)    898,965,921       30,155,888         1,127,064,293    

-                          

Profit for the year -                  -                    -                      43,851,811         43,851,811         

Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment 21 -                  -                    -                      -                     -                          

Related deferred tax impact -                          -                     -                          

21 -                  -                    (14,323,758)        14,323,758         -                      

378,738,210   (180,795,726)    884,642,163       88,331,457         1,170,916,104    

Profit for the year -                  -                    -                      100,692,208       100,692,208       

Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment -                  -                    578,033,224       -                     578,033,224       

Related deferred tax impact -                  -                    (167,629,635)      -                     (167,629,635)      

21 -                  -                    (16,275,073)        16,275,073         -                      0

378,738,210   (180,795,726)    1,278,770,679    205,298,738       1,682,011,901    

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Share capital
Reserves

Total 
Issued, 

subscribed 

and paid up 

capital

Balance as at June 30, 2020

Unappropriated  

profit

Revaluation 

surplus on 

property, plant 

and equipment

Discount on 

issue of right 

shares

---------------------------------------------Rupees-------------------------------------------

Total comprehensive income for the year ended June 30, 2019

Transfer from revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment in

respect of incremental depreciation - net of deferred tax

Total comprehensive income for the year ended June 30, 2020

Balance as at June 30, 2021

Transfer from revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment in

respect of incremental depreciation - net of deferred tax
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FRONTIER CERAMICS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR  ENDED JUNE  30, 2021

2021 2020

Note Rupees Rupees

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit for the year 149,415,061             33,975,323               

Adjustment for non cash items:

Depreciation 146,941,884             115,967,226             

Finance cost 32,266,304               36,989,648               

Workers' profit participation fund 8,020,259                 2,053,553                 

Amortization of defered income -                            (48,522)                     

187,228,447             154,961,905             

Profit before working capital changes 336,643,508             188,937,228             

Changes in working capital:

(Increase)/decrease in current assets

Stores, spares and loose tools (47,376,969)              (18,567,204)              

Stock in trade (4,134,181)                4,496,755                 

Trade debts (4,397,934)                (2,011,484)                

short term lending (2,400,000)                -                            

Advances (46,173,007)              (48,520,942)              

(Decrease)/increase in current liabilities

Trade and other payables 316,510,326             72,913,189               

Current portion of GIDC payable 60,807,896               -                            

Temporary bank overdraft -                            (1,274,313)                

Short term borrowings (80,639,335)              17,159,468               

192,196,796             24,195,469               

Cash generated from operations 528,840,304             213,132,697             

Finance cost paid (111,261,907)            (7,947,406)                

Taxes paid (61,834,429)              (35,489,298)              

(173,096,336)            (43,436,704)              

Net cash generated from operating activities 355,743,968             169,695,993             

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Addition to property, plant and equipment -                            (4,145,299)                

Addition to capital work in progress (248,153,942)            (58,575,025)              

Long term deposits -                            865,000                    

Net cash used in investing activities (248,153,942)            (61,855,324)              

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Long term financing-net 130,788,006             (45,557,801)              

Gas Infrastruture Development Cess 58,324,136               -                            

Lease rental paid -                            (1,929,392)                

Long term advances (312,000,396)            (2,605,156)                

Net cash (used in) financing activities (122,888,254)            (50,092,349)              

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (15,298,229)              57,748,320               

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 59,248,231               1,499,912                 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 18 43,950,002               59,248,231               

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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FRONTIER CERAMICS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR  ENDED JUNE  30, 2021

1 STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

2 GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATION AND ADDRESSES OF BUSINESS UNITS

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION

3.1 Statement of compliance

-

-

-

 

3.2 Basis of measurement

Frontier Ceramics Limited (the Company) was incorporated in July 1982 as a public limited

company under the Companies Act 1913 (now the Companies Act, 2017). Shares of the

Company are listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The principal activities of the

Company are manufacturing of ceramic tiles, sanitary wares and related ceramic products.

Islamic Financial Accounting Standard (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountant of Pakistan as are notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting

Standards Board ( IASB ) as notified under the Companies Act , 2017; and

These financial statements have been prepared following accrual basis of accounting except for

cash flow information.

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards

requires the management to make estimates, assumptions and use judgments that affect the

application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities and income and expenses.

Estimates, assumptions and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historic

experience and other factors including reasonable expectations of future events. Revisions to

accounting estimates are recognised prospectively commencing from the period of revision.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the approved accounting and

reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The approved accounting and reporting standards

applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

Judgments and estimates made by the management that may have a significant risk of material

adjustments to the financial statements in subsequent years are discussed in note 5.27.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS

Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been

followed.

Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for

certain fixed assets which have been stated at revalued amount and recognition of certain staff

retirement benefits at present value.

The registered office and manufacturing unit of the Company is situated at 29-Industrial Estate,

Jamrud Road, Peshawar Pakistan.

Sale offices of the Company are located at situated at 29-Industrial Estate, Jamrud Road,

Peshawar, Pearl Plaza, 174 Main Ferozpur Road Lahore and Toyota Rawal Motors Building

near Sawan Camp, GT road Rawalpindi.
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3.3 Functional and presentation currency

4

4.1 Effective in current year and are relevant  to the Company

4.2

Janaury 01, 2020

January 01, 2020

January 01, 2020

January 01, 2020

Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of IFRSs.

The Company has adopted all the new standards and amendments to the following approved

accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan which became effective during the year:

These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company's functional and

presentation currency.

NEW STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED

APPROVED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

New accounting standards, amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for

the

Effective date  

(annual periods 

beginning on or 

after)

The following stantdards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended June

30, 2021. These standards, amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the

Company's operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the financial statements

other than certain additional disclosures.

Amendments to IFRS 2, IFRS 3, IFRS 6, IFRS 14, IAS 1, IAS 8, IAS 34,

IAS 37, IAS 38, IFRIC 12, IFRIC 19, IFRIC 20, IFRIC 22, and SIC-32 to

update these pronouncements with regard to references to and quotes

from the framework or to indicate where they refer to different version of

the Conceptual Framework. January 01, 2020

Amendments to IFRS 3 'Business Combinations' - Defination of a

business.

Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments', IAS 39 'Financial

Instruments: Recognition and Measurement' and IFRS 7 'Financial

Instruments: Disclosures' - Interest rate benchmark reform.

Amendments to IFRS 16 'Leases' - Covid - 19 related rent consessions.

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' and IAS 8

'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors' -

Definition of material.

Effective date  

(annual periods 

beginning on or 

after)
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4.3

January 01, 2021

January 01, 2022

April 01, 2021

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2022

January 01, 2022

January 01, 2022

IFRS 1

IFRS 17

Amendmends to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Disclosure

of Accounting Policies

Amendments to IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting

Estimates and Errors' - Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amendments to IAS 12 'Income Taxes' - Deferred Tax related to Assets

and Liabilities arising from a single transaction

Effective date  

(annual periods 

beginning on or 

after)

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting

periods, beginning on or after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards,

amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the Company's operations or are not

expected to have significant impact on the Company's financial statements other than certain

additional  disclosures.

Interest Rate Benchmarch Reform - Phase 2

(Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16)

Amendmends to IFRS 3 'Business Combinations' - Reference to the

conceptual framework

Amendments to IFRS 16 'Leases' - Extended practical relief regarding

Covide - 19 related rent consessions

Amendmends to IAS 16 'Property, Plant and Equipment' - Proceeds

before intended use

Amendmends to IAS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and

Contingent Assets' - Onerous Contracts - Cost of fulfilling a contract

Amendmends to IAS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and

Contingent Assets' - Onerous Contracts - Cost of fulfilling a contract

The following new standards and interpretations have been issued by the International

Accounting Standards Board (IASB), which have not been adopted locally by the Securities and

Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP):

First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting

Standards

Amendmends to IAS 1'Presentation of Financial Statements' -

Classification of liabilities as current or non-current

Insurance Contracts

New accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet effective

Effective date  

(annual periods 

beginning on or 

after)
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5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

5.1 Property, plant and equipment

a) Operating fixed assets

b) Capital work in progress

c) Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment

Operating fixed assets except for freehold land, building and plant and machinery are stated at

cost less accumulated depreciation or impairment, if any. Freehold land, building and plant and

machinery are stated at cost/revalued amount less accumulated depreciation or impairment, if

any.

The principal accounting policies applied in the presentation of these financial statements are

set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless

otherwise stated.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of land, buildings and plant and machinery is 

recognised in other comprehensive income and presented as a separate component of equity as

“Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment”, except to the extent that it reverses a

revaluation decrease for the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, in which case the

increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged. Any

decrease in carrying amount arising on the revaluation of land, buildings and plant and

machinery is charged to profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the

revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment relating to a previous revaluation of that

asset. The revaluation reserve is not available for distribution to the Company’s shareholders.

The revaluation surplus on buildings and plant and machinery to the extent of incremental

depreciation charged (net of deferred tax) is transferred to unappropriated profit.

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost and consist of expenditure incurred, advances made

and other costs directly attributable to operating fixed assets in the course of their construction

and installation. Cost also includes applicable borrowing costs. Transfers are made to relevant

operating fixed assets category as and when assets are available for use intended by the

management.

Major renewals and repairs are capitalized and the assets so replaced are retired. Minor

renewals or replacement, maintenance and repairs are charged to income as and when incurred.

Gains or losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment are accounted for as profit or loss

for the year.

Amount equivalent to incremental depreciation charged on revalued assets is transferred from

revaluation surplus on building and plant and machinery net of deferred taxation to retained

earnings (unappropriate profit).

The assets' residual value and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if significant, at each

statement of financial position date.

Disposal of assets is recognized when significant risks and reward incidental to the ownership

have been transferred to buyers. Gain and losses on disposal are determined by comparing the

proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Depreciation is charged on the basis of written down value method whereby cost or revalued

amount of an asset is written off over its useful life without taking into account any residual

value. Full month's depreciation is charged on addition, while no depreciation is charged in the

month of disposal or deletion of assets.
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5.2 Investment property

5.3 Impairment

5.4 Leases

The carrying amount of the Company's assets are reviewed at each statement of financial

position date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indications

exist, the assets' recoverable amounts are estimated in order to determine the extent of

impairment loss, if any.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit

exceeds its recoverable amount. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset group

that generates cash flows that is largely independent from other assets and group. Impairment

losses are recognized as expense in statement of profit or loss. The recoverable amount is the

higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Where an impairment loss is

recognized, the depreciation charge is adjusted in the future periods to allocate the asset's

revised carrying amount over its estimated useful life.

Impaired assets are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each statement of

financial position date. Reversal of the impairment losses are restricted to the extent that asset's

carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of

depreciation, if no impairment losses had been recognized. A reversal of impairment loss is

recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Investment properties are de-recognized, when either they have been disposed off, or when the

investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is

expected from its disposal. Any gains and losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment

property are recognized in the income statement in the year of retirement or disposal.

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use. For a

transfer from investment property to owner occupied property, the cost of subsequent accounting

is the carrying amount at the date of change in use. If owner occupied property becomes an

investment property, the Company accounts for such property in accordance with the policy

stated under property, plant and equipment upto the date of change in use.

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is charged to income on reducing balance basis so as to write-off the historical cost

of assets over their estimated useful life. Depreciation is charged from the month of acquisition

upto the month preceding the deletion of investment property. Rental income is recognised on

accrual basis.

leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the 

leased asset is available for use by the Company. Each lease payment is allocated between the

liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the statement of profit or loss over the

lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the

liability for each period. The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the shorter of the asset's

useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. Payments associated with leases with a

lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets are recognized as an expense in

the statement of profit or loss.
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5.5 Stores, spares and loose tools

5.6 Stock in trade

- Raw materials      - at moving average method except stock in transit

- Work in process  - at cost of material plus proportionate production overheads

- Finished goods    - at cost of material as above plus proportionate production overheads

5.7 Trade debts

5.8 Loans, advances and other receivables

5.9 Cash and bank balances

Cash in hand and at banks are carried at nominal amount.

5.10 Share capital

Stores and spares are stated at cost less provision for slow moving and obsolete items. Cost is

determined by using the moving average method. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising

invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon.

Spare parts of capital nature which can be used only in connection with an item of property,

plant and equipment are classified as operating fixed assets under "Plant and machinery"

category and are depreciated over a time period not exceeding the useful life of the related

assets.

The Company reviews the carrying amount of stores and spares on a periodic basis and

provision is made for slow moving and obsolescence on periodic basis.

Stock in trade, except stock in transit, are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost

is determined as follows:

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less

the estimated cost of completion and costs necessary to be incurred in order to make the sale.

Stock in transit is valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges thereon.

Trade debts are recognized and carried at original invoiced amount which is fair value of the

consideration to be received in future. The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach

to measure the expected credit losses (ECL) which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for

trade debts. The Company was required to revise its impairment methodology under IFRS 9 for

trade debts.

Share capital is classified as equity and recognized at the face value. Incremental costs directly

attributable to the issue of new shares are shown as a deduction in equity.

These are recognized at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given. The Company

assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with the advances,

deposits and other receivables. The Company applies the general approach for calculating a

lifetime expected credit losses for its loans, advances, deposits and other receivables recognized.

The life time expected credit loss is determined at least annually. However, an assessment is

made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that a financial asset or a 

group of financial assets may be impaired. If such an indication exists, the estimated recoverable

amount of that asset is determined and impairment loss is recognized for the difference between

the recoverable amount and the carrying value.
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5.11 Taxation

a) Current

b) Deferred

c) Prior years

5.12 Borrowings

5.13 Trade and other payables

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in

statement of profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity in which case it is recognized in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income on current rates of taxation after taking

into account the rebates and tax credits available, if any, or one percent of turnover, whichever

is higher in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

The Company recognizes tax liabilities for pending tax assessments using estimates based on

expert opinion obtained from tax/legal advisors. Differences, if any, between the income tax

provision and the tax liability finally determined is recorded when such liability is so

determined. 

Short term borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has unconditional

right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

Borrowing cost on long term finances and short term borrowings which are specifically obtained

for the acquisition of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of cost of that assets. All other

borrowing costs are charged to statement of profit or loss in the period in which these are

incurred.

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the

consideration to be paid in the future for the goods and services received, whether or not billed

to the Company.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the statement of financial position liability method on all

temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial

reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and

deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be

available in future years to utilize deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax

credits. 

Deferred tax is calculated based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted

up to the reporting date and are expected to apply to the periods when the differences reverse.

Deferred tax for the year is charged or credited to the statement of profit or loss.

The taxation charge for prior years represents adjustments to the tax charge relating to prior

years, arising from assessments and changes in estimates made during the current year, except

otherwise stated.

Loans and borrowings are recorded at the proceeds received. Financial charges are accounted

for on accrual basis.
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5.14 Provisions

5.15 Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Sale of goods

Contract assets

Contract liabilities

Others

- Rental income is recognized on accrual basis.

5.16 Earnings per share

5.17 Cash and cash equivalents

A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when the Company has a legal

or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources

embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can

be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting future cash flows 

at appropriate discount rate where ever required. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date

and adjusted to reflect current best estimate.

Revenue comprises the fair value for the sale of goods net of sales taxes and discounts. Revenue

from the sale of goods is recognized when control of the goods passes to customers and the

customers can direct the use of and substantially obtain all the benefits from the goods.

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalent comprise cash in hand, cash at

bank and short term investments with maturity of not later than three months at known amount

in rupees.

Revenue is recognized when specific criteria have been met for each of the Company’s

activities as described below.

Sale of goods is recognized when the Company has transferred control of the products to the

customers and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of

the products. 

Contract assets arise when the Company performs its performance obligations by transferring

goods to a customer before the customer pays its consideration or before payment is due.

Contract liability is the obligation of the Company to transfer goods to a customer for which the

Company has received consideration from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before

the Company transfers goods, a contract liability is recognized when the payment is made.

Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs its performance

obligations under the contract.

The Company presents earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is

calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by

weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is

determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted

average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary

shares.
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5.18 Related party transactions

5.19 Dividend and apportioning to reserves

5.20 Financial instruments

5.20.1 Financial assets

Amortized cost

(i)

(ii

)

Impairment

5.20.2 Financial liabilities

The Company recognizes loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) on financial assets

measured at amortized cost and contract assets. The Company measures loss allowance at an

amount equal to lifetime ECLs. 

Lifetime ECLs are those that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a

financial instrument. The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum

contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether the financial assets carried at amortized

cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have

detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have occurred.

Transactions involving related parties arising in the normal course of business are conducted at

arm's length at normal commercial rates on the same terms and conditions as third party

transactions using valuation modes as admissible.

Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognized in the financial statements in the period

in which these are approved.

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through

profit or loss, fair value through other comprehensive income and amortized cost. The

classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management

determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. All the financial assets

of the Company as at statement of financial position date are carried at amortized cost.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both the following conditions and is

not designated as at fair value through profit or loss:

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross

carrying amount of the assets. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when

the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a

portion thereof. 

All financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the

contractual provisions of the instrument.

it is held with in a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual

cash flows; and

its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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5.20.3 Recognition and measurement 

5.20.4 Derecognition

5.21 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

5.22 Derivative financial instruments

5.23 Segment reporting

5.24 Foreign currency translation

5.25 Contingencies

These are initially recorded at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are

re-measured to fair value at reporting dates. The method of recognizing the resulting gain or loss

depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of

the item being hedged. The Company does not apply hedge accounting for any derivatives.

Any gain or loss from change in fair value of derivatives that do not qualify for hedge

accounting are taken directly to statement of profit or loss.

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from

which it may earn revenues and incur expenses including revenues and expenses that relate to

transactions with any of the Company’s other components. The Company has only one

reportable segment. 

Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into Pak Rupees at the rates of exchange

prevailing on the dates of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are

translated into Pak Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the reporting date. Exchange

gains and losses are included in the statement of profit or loss.

A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past 

events, existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or

more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or the Company has

a present legal or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is not probable that

an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation,

or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the

consideration given and received respectively. These financial assets and liabilities are

subsequently measured at fair value, amortized cost or cost, as the case may be. The particular

measurement methods adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with

each item. 

The financial assets are de-recognized when the Company loses control of the contractual rights

that comprise the financial assets. The financial liabilities are de-recognized when they are

extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or

expired.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial

statements only when the Company has a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized

amounts and the Company intends to settle either on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the

liability simultaneously.
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5.26 Ijarah

5.27 Significant accounting judgments and critical accounting estimates / assumptions 

-

-

a) Income taxes

b) Property, plant and equipment

c) Stores and spares

d) Provision for inventory obsolescence and doubtful receivables

e) Contingencies

The Company reviews the status of all the legal cases on regular basis. Based on expected 

outcome and lawyers' judgments, appropriate disclosure or provision is made.

The areas involving critical accounting estimates and significant assumptions concerning the

future are discussed below:-

The Company takes into account relevant provisions of the prevailing income tax laws while

providing for current and deferred taxes as explained in note 5.11 of these financial statements.

The estimates for revalued amounts, if any, of different classes of property, plant and

equipment, are based on valuation performed by external professional valuers and

recommendation of technical teams of the Company. The said recommendations also include

estimates with respect to residual values and useful lives. Further, the Company reviews the

value of the assets for possible impairment on an annual basis. Any change in these estimates in

future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of property, plant and

equipment with corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and impairment loss.

Management has made estimates for realizable amount of slow moving and obsolete stores and

spares items to determine provision for slow moving and obsolete items. Any future change in

the estimated realizable amounts might affect carrying amount of stores and spares with

corresponding affect on amounts recognized in statement of profit or loss as provision / reversal.  

The Company reviews the carrying amounts of stores, spares and loose tools and stock in trade

on regular basis and provision is made for obsolescence if there is any change in usage pattern

and physical form of related stores, spares and loose tools and stock in trade. Further the

carrying amount of trade and other receivables are assessed on regular basis and if there is any

doubt about the reliability of these receivables, appropriate amount of provision is made.

The Company accounts for assets under ijarah arrangements in accordance with Islamic

Financial Accounting Standard (IFAS) 2 - Ijarah whereby rental payments due under these

arrangements are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit or loss on a straight line

basis over the ijarah (lease) term. 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards

requires the management to:-

 exercise its judgment in process of applying the Company’s accounting policies; and

 use of certain critical accounting estimates and assumptions concerning the future.

Judgments have been exercised by the management in applying the Company's accounting

policies in many areas. Actual results may differ from estimates calculated using these

judgments and assumptions.
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6 OPERATING FIXED ASSETS

The following is the statement of operating fixed assets:

Imported Local Electrification
Casting 

benches

Laboratory 

ware
Generators

Year ended June 30, 2021

Net carrying value basis

Opening net book value (NBV)   450,000,000          454,647,040          514,397,964       4,493,899             17,379,155            156,691             21,340         3,967,082              69,269            422,539              98,734    22,626,765   1,468,280,478 

Revaluation during the year     30,000,000            52,487,136          468,429,312       3,987,376               3,224,523              28,705              3,809       19,872,363                     -                       -                    -        578,033,224 

Transferred from leased assets                   -                            -                     -                             -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       -                       -                    -                        -   

Disposals                   -                            -                     -                             -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       -                       -                        -   

Depreciation charge                   -             (49,401,239)           (86,571,995)      (1,496,886)                (989,877)             (17,822)             (4,839)        (3,774,271)             (13,854)             (84,508)             (29,620)    (4,525,353)     (146,910,264)

Closing net book value   480,000,000          457,732,937          896,255,281       6,984,389             19,613,801            167,574             20,310       20,065,174              55,415            338,031              69,114    18,101,412   1,899,403,438 

Gross carrying value basis

Cost / revalued amount   480,000,000          631,878,160        1,357,105,358     17,017,901             29,162,704            478,090           202,553       24,631,667         2,696,361         4,917,744            380,940    40,566,193   2,589,037,671 

Accumulated depreciation                   -           (174,145,223)         (460,850,077)    (10,033,512)             (9,548,903)           (310,516)         (182,243)        (4,566,493)        (2,640,946)        (4,579,713)           (311,826)  (22,464,781)     (689,634,233)

Net book value   480,000,000          457,732,937          896,255,281       6,984,389             19,613,801            167,574             20,310       20,065,174              55,415            338,031              69,114    18,101,412   1,899,403,438 

Year ended June 30, 2020

Net carrying value basis

Opening net book value (NBV) 450,000,000 505,163,377         571,553,294         1,792,374      18,293,847           174,101           26,675           60,141             86,586             169,223           141,048           28,283,456  1,575,744,122  

Additions -                -                    -              -                        -                -              3,854,701        -                290,598           -               4,145,299        

Transferred from leased assets                   -                            -         3,799,500                           -                       -                      -              496,667                     -                       -                       -                    -   4,296,167        

Depreciation charge 6.1 -                (50,516,337)         (57,155,330)         (1,097,975)    (914,692)               (17,410)           (5,335)            (444,427)         (17,317)           (37,282)           (42,314)           (5,656,691)   (115,905,110)   

Closing net book value 450,000,000 454,647,040         514,397,964         4,493,899      17,379,155           156,691           21,340           3,967,082        69,269             422,539           98,734             22,626,765  1,468,280,478  

Gross carrying value basis

Cost / revalued amount 450,000,000 579,391,024         888,676,046         13,030,525    25,938,181           449,385           198,744         4,759,304        2,696,361        4,917,744        380,940           40,566,193  2,011,004,447  

Accumulated depreciation -                (124,743,984)        (374,278,082)        (8,536,626)    (8,559,026)            (292,694)         (177,404)        (792,222)         (2,627,092)      (4,495,205)      (282,206)         (17,939,428) (542,723,969)   

Net book value 450,000,000 454,647,040         514,397,964         4,493,899      17,379,155           156,691           21,340           3,967,082        69,269             422,539           98,734             22,626,765  1,468,280,478  

Annual  rate of depreciation (%) - 10% 10% 20% 5% 10% 20% 20% 20% 20% 30% 20%

2021 2020

Note Rupees Rupees

6.1 Allocation of depreciation:

Cost of sales 30   143,972,058          112,107,731 

Distribution cost 31       1,469,103              1,898,689 

Administrative expenses 32       1,469,103              1,898,690 

146,910,264 115,905,110         

Description Note
Office 

equipment

Rupees

Computers Vehicles Total
Furniture 

and fixtures 

Freehold    

land
Factory building 

Plant and machinery owned
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6.2

a) 575,211           

b)

14,811             

590,022           

6.3 Revaluation of freehold land, building and plant and machinery

6.3.1

6.3.2

Free hold land

Factory building

Plant and machinery

This represents a building at Karachi owned by the Company. This has been held to earn rental income by letting out its office and disclosed in the financial statements as an investment property applying cost model in accordance with IAS 40 "Investment Property". Fair value of the investment property assessed by the management amounting to Rs 7,000,000 (2019: Rs. 7,000,000) at year end. Imported

Local 

Electrification

Casting benches

Laboratory ware

Generators

6.3.3

Had there been no revaluation, the net book value of the specific classes of operating assets would

have been as follows:

The forced sale value of the revalued property has been assessed at Rs. 1,555,029,150.

Free hold land of the Company is located at 29-Industrial Estate, Jamrud Road, Peshawar Pakistan.

Details of factory and residential buildings of the company constructed on this land are as follows:

29-Industrial Estate, Jamrud Road,

Peshawar Pakistan

Workers' accommodations, guard

rooms, Store and Masjid.

The Company has adopted the revaluation model for subsequent measurement of freehold land,

buildings and plant and machinery. During October 22, 2020, the Company has carried out

revaluation of its assets through independent valuer M/s K.G Traders (Private) Limited on the basis of

market value as disclosed in note 40.2. Further details of revaluation carried out by the Company to

date are as follows:

Location Particulars
Covered Area 

(sq.ft)

Main factory building including

material godown, store room, Kiln

area, workshops and other civil

works.

Name of independent valuer Date of revaluation

M/s K.G Traders (Private) Limited 578,033,224  

M/s K.G Traders (Private) Limited

M/s Mughal Associates

M/s Mughal Associates

M/s Mughal Associates

M/s Industrial Consultants and Machinery Linkers

M/s Global Engineers (Private) Limited

Jun 30, 2010

Jun 08, 2004

Aug 25, 1996

June 30, 2015

May 21, 2012

June 30, 2019

October 22, 2020

283,925,776                          

Revaluation surplus

                  (Rupees)

643,554,757                          

                           128,039,030 

                             35,560,289 

                           353,104,564 

66,359,632                            

2021 2020

Rupees Rupees

3,518,245      3,518,245      

8,243,330      9,159,256      

116,424,346  129,360,385  

859,934         1,074,918      

2,925,470      3,079,442      

53,409           59,343           

1,806             2,257             

20,495           25,619           

120,285,460  133,601,964  

132,047,035  146,279,465  
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2021 2020

Note Rupees Rupees

7 CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS

Balance as at July 01, 58,575,025       -                    

Additions during the year 7.1 248,153,942     58,575,025       

Transferred to property, plant and equipment -                    -                    

306,728,967     58,575,025       

7.1

2021 2020

Note Rupees Rupees

8 INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Office building 8.1 600,782            632,402            

8.1 The movement in this head is as follows:

Net carrying value basis

Year ended June 30,

Opening net book value 632,402            665,686            

Depreciation charge (31,620)             (33,284)             

Closing net book value              600,782              632,402 

Gross carrying value basis

Year ended June 30,

Cost           2,648,885           2,648,885 

Accumulated depreciation         (2,048,103)         (2,016,483)

Net book value              600,782              632,402 

Annual rate of depreciation (%) 5% 5%

8.2

8.3

2021 2020

Note Rupees Rupees

9 LONG TERM DEPOSITS

Peshawar Electric Supply Company 1,403,200         1,403,200         

WAPDA 48,250              48,250              

30,000              30,000              

Others 32,000              32,000              

1,513,450         1,513,450         

This represents a building at Karachi owned by the Company. This has been held to earn rental

income by letting out its office and disclosed in the financial statements as an investment property

applying cost model in accordance with IAS 40 "Investment Property". Fair value of the investment

property assessed by the management amounting to Rs 7,000,000 (2020: Rs. 7,000,000) at year

end. 

This represents parts of new plant and machinery imported during the year which is expected to be

installed in next year.

The rental income in respect of the property amounting to Rs. 1,451,520 has been recognised in

profit and loss in other income. Depreciation on this property is calculated using written down

value method is charged to administrative expenses.

Office security
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10 LONG TERM ADVANCES

Balance as at July 01,           9,515,079           6,909,923 

Additions during the year         30,806,080           4,300,007 

Adjusted during the year       (28,970,684)         (1,694,851)

10.1         11,350,475           9,515,079 

Advance against land 10.2       310,165,000                       -   

321,515,475     9,515,079         

10.1

10.2

2021 2020

Note Rupees Rupees

11 STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS

Stores 113,382,202     66,361,754       

Spare parts and loose tools 5,970,925         5,614,404         

11.1 119,353,127     71,976,158       

11.1

2021 2020

Note Rupees Rupees

12 STOCK IN TRADE

Raw material 120,561,267     85,912,531       

Work in process 16,394,509       57,667,499       

Finished goods 36,400,699       25,642,264       

173,356,475     169,222,294     

13 TRADE DEBTS

Unsecured - considered good

Trade receivbales 6,890,929         2,492,995         

The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on January 07, 2021 decided in

principal to avail the opportunity of initially acquiring 1,031 kanals of land off CPEC highway near

Mianwali from a related party Mr. Nadeem Khalid ( Chief Executive) at payment terms over the

period of five years. Keeping in view conducive business environment, directors feel that if the

environment remains stable then in next ten years Company will establish a large ceramic factory at

said proposed location.

This represents advance given to Toyota Rawal Motors (Private) Limited and Rawal Industrial

Equipment (Private) Limited, a related parties for the lease of vehicles for employees. This balance

will be adjusted against the salaries of employees of the Company. 

Stores, spares and loose tools includes items which may result in capital expenditure but are not

distinguishable at the time of purchase. However, the stores and spares consumption resulting in

capital expenditure are capitalized in cost of respective assets.
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14 SHORT TERM LENDING

Khalid and Khalid Holdings (Private) Limited 14.1 7,637,000         5,237,000         

14.1 Advance to related party

2021 2020

Rupees Rupees

15 ADVANCES

Unsecured - considered good

Advances

- to suppliers 3,668,885         6,365,732         

- against letter of credit 62,051,665       48,695,904       

- against letter of credit margin 62,724,861       24,832,698       

- security deposit 1,388,384         5,952,644         

- against letter of guarantee 6,925,100         6,102,460         

- against salaries 3,226,681         2,462,562         

- against expenses 855,526            257,109            

- other advances 107,537            106,523            

140,948,639     94,775,632       

2021 2020

Note Rupees Rupees

16 TAX REFUNDS DUE FROM GOVERNMENT 

Considered good 

Balance as at July 01, 63,962,052       40,736,015       

-                    23,226,037       

63,962,052       63,962,052       

17 TAXATION - NET

Balance as at July 01, 22,482,902       23,226,037       

Prior year adjustment (192,735)           -                    

22,290,167       23,226,037       

-                    (23,226,037)      

22,290,167       -                    

Provision for taxation 36 (78,043,572)      (13,006,396)      

Advance income tax 61,600,585       35,489,298       

5,847,180         22,482,902       

Refundable/(adjustable) assessed during the year

This represents amount advanced to Khalid and Khalid Holdings Private Limited, a related party

due to common directorship. The advanced amount is repayable before June 30, 2022. The advance

is considered unsecured. The maximum aggregate amount outstanding at any time during the year

is same as the above carrying amount of advance.

Adjusted against / transferred to tax refunds due from 

government
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2021 2020

Note Rupees Rupees

18 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand 196,847              250,641              

Cash at bank - Local currency

   Current accounts 37,418,298         58,997,590         

           Saving account 18.1 6,334,857           -                      

43,950,002         59,248,231         

18.1

2021 2020

Rupees Rupees

19 SHARE CAPITAL

19.1 Authorized share capital

2021 2020

75,000,000 75,000,000 750,000,000       750,000,000       

19.2 Issued, subscribed and paid up capital

2021 2020

37,873,821 37,873,821 378,738,210       378,738,210       

19.3

20 DISCOUNT ON ISSUE OF RIGHT SHARES

This represents investment in First Habib Islamic Income Fund against employee provident fund

balance.

Number of shares

Number of shares

Ordinary shares 

of  Rs. 10 each 

fully paid in cash

Ordinary shares 

of Rs. 10 each

All ordinary share holders have same rights regarding voting, board selection and entitlement to

dividend.

This represents discount on issue of right shares upon exercising the option given to members in

board of directors meeting held on February 18, 2014 to subscribe for the right shares issue which

were allotted on August 08, 2014 at a discount of Rs. 6 per share with the entitlement of 389.25%

shares against SECP approval vide letter No. EMD/233/584/02 dated February 07, 2014 for the

total right issue of 30.133 million shares at Rs. 4 per share (discount of Rs. 6 per share) by way of

right issue. All the relevant legal formalities required by the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984

(now Companies Act, 2017) were completed by the Company before issuance of the right shares.
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21

2021 2020

Rupees Rupees

Balance as at July 01, 1,063,609,091    1,083,783,397    

Add: Revaluation surplus for the year 578,033,224       -                      

Less: 

16,275,073         14,323,758         

6,647,564           5,850,548           

22,922,637         20,174,306         

1,618,719,678    1,063,609,091    

Less: 

Related deferred tax effect :

Balance as at July 01, 178,966,928       184,817,476       

Revaluation during the year 167,629,635       -                      

Effect of change in rate -                      -                      

(6,647,564)          (5,850,548)          

339,948,999       178,966,928       

1,278,770,679    884,642,163       

21.1

Related deferred tax liability during the year

transferred to profit and loss account

Incremental depreciation charged during the

year transfer to statement of profit or loss

Transferred to equity in respect of incremental

depreciation charged during the year - net of

deferred tax

The revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment is a capital reserve, and is not available

for distribution to the shareholders in accordance with section 241 of the Companies Act, 2017.

REVALUATION SURPLUS ON PROPERTY PLANT 

AND EQUIPMENT 
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2021 2020

Note Rupees Rupees

22 LONG TERM FINANCING

From associated person - unsecured 22.1 19,996,435                  11,804,923 

From associated company - unsecured

-Rawal Industrial Equipment (Pvt.) Ltd 22.2 185,957,916              156,671,193 

-Toyota Rawal Motors (Pvt.) Ltd 22.2 93,082,306                                 -   

299,036,657              168,476,116 

Less: Current portion associated person -                                  (227,465)

-                      (227,465)            

299,036,657       168,248,651      

22.1

22.2

2021 2020

Note Rupees Rupees

23

                         -   -                         

        119,132,032 -                         

        119,132,032 -                         

        (60,807,896) -                         

23.1 58,324,136         -                         

23.1

This represents interest bearing unsecured loan and accumalated markup thereon received from

Chief Executive of the Company for working capital requirements.The loan carries mark up at the

rate at KIBOR plus 2 % per annum. The loan is restructured during the year in June 30, 2021. As

per revised terms, the borrower will accrue interest over the years for a grace period of six years

after which the payment of principle amount stands due. Moreover, markup will be payable after

the settlement of the principal amount.

This represents interest bearing unsecured loans and accumalated markup thereon received from

related parties,Rawal Industrial Equipment (Private) Limited and Toyota Rawal Motors (Private)

Limited for working capital of the Company and acquisition of the equipment. The loan has been

restructured during the year in June 30, 2021.It carries mark up at the rate at KIBOR plus 2 % per

annum. As per revised terms, the borrower will accrue interest over the years for a grace period of

six years after which the payment of principle amount stands due. Moreover, markup will be

payable after the settlement of the principal amount.

GAS INFRASTRUTURE DEVELOPMENT CESS

In 2011, GIDC was imposed on natural gas consumers including companies with effect from

January 01, 2012 to finance the cost of laying the overland gas pipeline. In 2013, the Peshawar

High Court declared the GIDC Act 2011 as ultra vires the constitution and stuck down the GIDC

Act 2011. In August 2014, Supreme Court of Pakistan dismisses the appeal filed by the Federal

Government of Pakistan deciding that GIDC is a fee and not a tax and could not be imposed by

money bill. In September 2014, the GIDC Ordinance was promulgated by the President of Pakistan

with retrospective effect with original imposition. In October 2016, the Sindh High Court declared

the levy to be un-constitutional. In August 2020, the Supreme Court of Pakistan held that GIDC is

validly levied and allowed the government to collect the amount in 24 equal installments. Further,

in November 2020, the Supreme Court dismissed the review petition seeking review of its order

(issued in August 2020). Supreme Court in its judgement on the review petitions noted that

government is agreeing to recover the arrears for GIDC in 48 monthly installments (instead of 24

months, as mentioned in August 2020 order of the Supreme Court). The Federal Government has

started the recovery of this fee and the Company has booked the liability amounting to Rs. 119.353

million in this regard after receiving bill from the SNGPL at fair value in accordance with IFRS 9

by discounting the future cash payments required to be made in 48 installments, to settle the

liability for GIDC. 

Balance brought forward

Accumulated present value of GIDC

Less: Current portion of GIDC
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2021 2020

Note Rupees Rupees

24 DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred taxation 24.1 341,886,860       203,770,678      

24.1

2021 2020

Note Rupees Rupees

Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets 339,948,999       178,966,928      

Accelerated depreciation 10,637,862         34,617,152        

Deferred expense (8,700,001)          -                     

Tax credit under section 65B -                           (9,813,402)         

341,886,860 203,770,678

Tax rate used 29% 29%

25 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade creditors 262,448,471       183,906,761      

Accrued liabilities 118,225,969       59,136,510        

Advances from customers 181,263,192       24,184,293        

Old labour dues 25.1 3,256,878            3,256,878          

Sales tax payable 14,194,618         9,625,067          

Withholding income tax payable 1,639,564            2,458,245          

2021 2020

Note Rupees Rupees

Workers' profit participation fund 25.2 51,887,629         37,654,395        

Workers' welfare fund 7,199,664            1,698,108          

Provident fund payable 25.3 6,334,857            -                     

646,450,842       321,920,257      

25.1

2021 2020

Rupees Rupees

25.2 Movement in workers' profit participation fund:

Balance as at July 01, 37,654,395         30,558,663        

Interest for the year (at 16.5%) 6,212,975            5,042,179          

Provision for the year 8,020,259            2,053,553          

51,887,629         37,654,395        

25.3 During the year, with effect from January 01, 2021 the Company has opted provident fund for staff

retirement benefits covering all permanent and regular employees as per registered provident fund

rules and regulations.

This represents labor dues of old employees which relates to the period prior to the acquisition by

current management of the Company. The dues are recorded in the year ended June 30, 2011 due

to claims lodged against Company by workmen and on receipt of notification from SECP in 2012.

Deferred tax liabilities / (assets) arising due to taxable temporary differences are as follows:
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2021 2020

Note Rupees Rupees

26 MARK UP ACCRUED

Mark up on short term borrowing from:

Financial institution -                      3,822,476          

Associated company 22.2 -                      55,513,339        

Markup on longterm financing 22.1 -                      19,637,947        

Mark up on finance lease -                      28,222                

-                      79,001,984        

27 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

Financial institution - secured 27.1 -                      1,910,000          

Related parties - unsecured

Due to associated company 27.2 -                      78,729,335        

-                      80,639,335        

27.1

27.2

28 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

28.1 CONTINGENCIES

28.1.1 Noman Ghani vs. FCL and others

28.1.2 Mohammad Iqbal vs. FCL

28.1.3 Noor Mohammad, Muhammad Farhad and Muhammad A Khan and vs. FCL

This represents interest bearing loan received from Innovative Investment Bank Limited for

working capital on musharaka sharing basis in 2003. The loan carries mark up at the rate of 15%

per annum. However, the amount has been paid to liquidator in current year to settle total liability

of principal amount.

This represents interest bearing unsecured loan received from Toyota Rawal Motors (Private)

Limited for working capital of the Company and acquisition of the equipment at KIBOR + 2%, the

principal amount shall be paid in twelve equal quarterly installments starting after a grace period of

two years. During the year, the loan has been restructured as disclosed in note 22.2. The amount of

interest charged on the loan will be paid subsequent to the settlement of the principal amount.   

This is a recovery suit against the Company. In this suit original claim was of Rs. 1.248 million.

Later on, the petitioner submitted another application for amendment of plaint for recovery of Rs.

20 million plus 18% being current bank interest. The application was dismissed and they filed an

appeal against the order in the Honorable High Court, Peshawar. The case was remanded back by

the High Court to District Civil Judge, Peshawar which dismissed the case on June 03, 2014 and

provided partial relief to Noman Ghani. Now Noman Ghani has again filed an appeal with High

Court against the decision of Civil Judge pending receipt / issue of the summon from High Court.

The Company has not incorporated the contingency as the management is of the view that the case

will be settled in favour of the Company.

This is a recovery suit against FCL. Total claim of this suit is Rs. 1.711 million. This suit is also

decided in favour of FCL and plaintiff filed an appeal before the Honorable High Court which is

pending.

A suit was filed against the unit in the labour court by the above three persons. Total amount

involved in the suit is around Rs. 2.762 million. The case was decided in the favour of the

Company. However, opposite party filed appeal before Honorable High Court.
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28.1.4

28.1.5

28.1.6

28.1.7

28.1.8 Bank Guarantees

28.1.9 Ali Rehman, Tallat Sher, Meenazar Gul vs. FCL

28.1.10 Gratuity

The above tile case is pending before the wages authority. In the instant case, the applicant claim is

that the FCL is liable to pay Rs 497,778. The case is fixed in evidence.

Amer Zada vs FCL

The above tile case is pending before the wages authority. In the instant case, the applicant claim

that the FCL is liable to pay Rs 280,000. The case is in evidence.

FCL vs. Chief Executive  PESCO

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide letter No. EMD/233/584/2002-1846

dated June 9, 2015, required explanation from the Company for non-provisioning of gratuity.

The Company has not accounted for any provision against staff retirement benefits in terms of

gratuity or provident fund or both as per the requirement Standing Orders in these financial

statements since 2008 till December 31, 2020. However, the provident fund facility has been

initiated by the Company against staff retirement benefit as per the requirements of law of The

Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Industrial and Commercial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 2013 with

effect of January 01, 2021. Therefore, the Company does not need to provide any provision for

gratuity for the previous period since June 2008 which is the takeover date of the Company of the

present management. The Company can sustain the risk of the penalty, if any, provided under the

law.

Moreover, the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide letter No. EMD/233/584/2002-

411 dated November 30, 2015, required the Company to remove auditor’s qualification within 30

days of notice as per the provision of Section 472 of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984. The

management in their response vide letter Ref. FCL/234/872/2016 dated December 30, 2015 replied

that the redemption process was completed on 5th day of November 2015 and then, in that year,

financial performance had also improved and the Company started gratuity working in full swing,

for compliance with the Industrial & Commercial Employment (Standing Orders) Ordinance 1968

and removal of auditor's qualification. No further notice or order has been received from SECP in

this regard. 

However, during the year, with effect from January 01, 2021 the Company has opted provident fund

for staff retirement benefits covering all permanent and regular employees as per registered

provident fund rules and regulations.

Suits were filed against the FCL in the labour court by the above three persons. All of them seek

reinstatement of service. Total amount involved in the suit is around Rs. 1.559 million.

FCL vs. G.M. of SNGPL

The above tile case is decided by the gas utility court in entity's favour however now the S.N.G.P.L

filed appeal before the honourable high court and the said appeal is pending before the court. In the

instant case, entity claim that after amendment in the law the unit is not bound to pay further tax and

extra tax in the gas bill. Total amount of Rs 1,000,000 is involved in the case.

Shameem Akhter vs. FCL

The above tile case is pending before the gas utility court. In the instant case, entity claims that after

amendment in the law the unit is not bound to pay further tax and extra tax in the electricity bill.

Total of Rs. 900,000 is involved in the case.

Guarantee has been issued by Bank Al Habib on behalf of the Company in the normal course of

business in favor of PARCO, PESCO and M/s Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited aggregating to

Rs. 59.340 million (2019: Rs. 46.841 million).



2021 2020

Note Rupees Rupees

28.2 COMMITMENTS

The Company has following commitments:

- in respect of letter of credit

- against import of raw materials         165,115,970          83,713,727 

- against import of stores and spares           26,099,752          33,805,988 

- against import of plant and machinery         480,568,472        197,806,665 

671,784,194       315,326,380      

Commitments for Ijarah arrangements

Not later than one year 1,710,828            3,421,656          

Later than one year and not later than five years -                      1,710,828          

1,710,828            5,132,484          

29 SALES

Gross sales - tiles 3,412,479,769    1,345,995,957   

Less:

Trade discount 29.1 (87,696,942)        (35,200,205)       

Sales tax (495,830,393)      (195,572,075)     

2,828,952,434    1,115,223,677   

29.1

2021 2020

Note Rupees Rupees

30 COST OF SALES

Raw material consumed 30.1 662,000,385       250,871,384      

Stores, spares and loose tools consumed 30.2 966,687,683       234,658,216      

Gas and electricity 403,876,270       275,082,738      

Depreciation 6.1 144,002,586       112,136,564      

Salaries, wages and other benefits 30.5 210,392,749       109,638,121      

Generator rent -                      950,125             

Travelling and conveyance 412,609               155,153             

Repairs and maintenance 219,754               152,234             

Miscellaneous 30.3  2,119,385            3,176,574          

Ijarah payments 30.4 3,464,156            3,606,681          

Freight Costs 14,047,233         -                     

GIDC Expense 119,132,032       -                     

Damaged stock -                      7,112                  

2,526,354,842    990,434,902      

Work in process

Opening 57,667,499         57,967,049        

Closing (16,394,509)        (57,667,499)       

41,272,990         299,550             

Finished goods

Opening 25,642,264         37,409,844        

Provision / inventory written off -                      -                     

Closing (36,400,699)        (25,642,264)       

(10,758,435)        11,767,580        

2,556,869,397    1,002,502,032   

This represents trade discount to specific customers. The ceramics industry was included in the

third schedule of Sales Tax Act, 1990 through Finance Bill, 2019-2020. This shifted the

responsibility of company to charge sales tax on the retail price. Previously sales tax was charge on

the ex-factory price i.e excluding dealer margin from the retail price.
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30.1 Raw material consumed

Opening stock 85,912,531         78,342,156        

Add: Purchases 696,649,121       258,441,759      

Less: Closing stock (120,561,267)      (85,912,531)       

662,000,385       250,871,384      

30.2 Stores, spares and loose tools consumed

Opening stock 71,976,158         53,408,954        

Add:  Purchases 1,014,064,652    253,225,420      

Less: Closing stock (119,353,127)      (71,976,158)       

966,687,683       234,658,216      

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees

30.3 Miscellaneous

Internet Expenses 767,300               573,600             

L.G  Expenses 411,458               12,864                

Mobile Expense 39,500                 28,706                

Postage and Shipping 22,515                 33,257                

Printing and Stationary 440                      73,230                

Professional tax 700,000               10,000                

Insurance expenses -                      380,000             

Accommodation xpense -                      1,000                  

Sales Tax 1,699,702          

PTCL Expense 149,830               218,210             

Exchange Loss -                      134,195             

Fuel Expense 28,342                 11,810                

2,119,385            3,176,574          

30.4

30.5

2021 2020

Note Rupees Rupees

31 DISTRIBUTION COST

Salaries, allowances and benefits 31.1 9,754,274            9,837,067          

Rent expense -                      198,396             

Communication and travel expense 162,559               357,297             

Printing and repair expense 315,263               5,560                  

Depreciation 6.1 1,469,414            1,898,689          

Freight Charges 31.2 29,075,000         -                     

40,776,510         12,297,009        

31.1

This represents Ijarah payments for an excavator machine taken under Ijarah arrangement from

First Habib Modarba Bank. Under the agreement, the term of Ijarah is two years and Ijarah

payments of Rs. 285,138 are payable on monthly basis in 36 installments.

Salaries, wages and other benefits includes an amount of Rs. 2,838,499 (2020: Rs. Nil) in respect

of staff retirement benefits.

Salaries, wages and other benefits includes an amount of Rs. 70,116 (2020: Rs. Nil) in respect of

staff retirement benefits.

31.2 This represent provision against discount offered to 496 customers based on sales made to them for

three months to maintain business performance despite slowed down economic activity.

Page 68 



2021 2020

Note Rupees Rupees

32 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Directors' remuneration 44 2,340,000            1,876,350          

Salaries, allowances and benefits 29,400,073         22,383,761        

Fee and subscription -                      78,808                

Rent, rates and taxes 1,062,638            1,019,770          

Utilities 120,000               120,000             

Communication 235,453               190,868             

Printing, postage and stationery 246,813               152,768             

Advertisement expense 264,041               77,781                

Depreciation 6.1 & 8.1 1,469,414            1,931,973          

Travelling and conveyance 353,731               370,854             

Vehicle running and maintenance 143,022               107,076             

Entertainment 2,150                   91,558                

Repair and maintenance 49,650                 53,860                

35,686,985         28,455,427        

32.1

2021 2020

Note Rupees Rupees

33 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Workers' profit participation fund 8,020,259            2,053,553          

Worker's welfare fund 5,501,556            -                     

Auditors' remuneration 33.1 725,250               657,510             

Legal and professional charges 2,341,559            1,371,791          

Advances written off 246,514               -                     

Others 991,231               820                     

17,826,369         4,083,674          

33.1 Auditors' remuneration

Annual audit fee 572,450               535,000             

Review of half year financial statements 110,000               85,500                

Out of pocket expenses 42,800                 37,010                

725,250               657,510             

34 OTHER INCOME 

Rental income 1,451,520            1,500,042          

Liabilities written back 34.1 1,260,698            427,414             

Insurance claimable -                      300,000             

Exchange gain 379,096               444,844             

Markup 796,878               250,270             

3,888,192            2,922,569          

34.1

Salaries, wages and other benefits includes an amount of Rs. 225,920 (2020: Rs. Nil) in respect of

staff retirement benefits.

This amount mainly represents markup in respect of Musharka Finance facility from Innovative

investment bank which is waived off at year end. 
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2021 2020

Note Rupees Rupees

35 FINANCE COST

Mark up / interest on: 

Finance charges on lease -                      156,867             

Letter of guarantee margin 602,500               531,103             

Long term financing 320,701               -                     

Short term borrowings

From financial institutions -                      143,250             

From related party 22.2 23,545,174         29,138,245        

23,545,174         29,281,495        

Workers' profit participation fund 6,212,975            5,042,179          

Bank charges 1,584,954            1,821,137          

32,266,304         36,832,781        

36 TAXATION

Provision for taxation

Current year 78,043,572         13,006,396        

Prior year 192,735               -                     

Deferred (29,513,454)        (22,882,884)       

48,722,853         (9,876,488)         

36.1

2021

Rupees

Accounting profit 149,415,061      

Tax charge based on applicable tax rate 43,330,368        

46,774,514        

(12,398,063)       

Tax effect of deductible allowance on income from property (84,188)              

Tax effect of  income from property 420,941             

Prior year charge 192,735             

Deffered Tax (29,513,454)       

5,392,485          

Average effective tax rate charge (reversal) 48,722,853        

Applicable tax rate 29%

Average effective tax rate on profit 29%

36.1.1

37 EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED 

Note 2021 2020

Profit/(loss) after taxation (Rs.) 100,692,208       43,851,811        

Weighted average (number of shares) 37,873,821         37,873,821        

Earnings/(loss) per share-basic and diluted (Rs.) 37.1 2.66                     1.16                    

37.1

Numerical reconciliation between the applicable tax rate and average effective tax rate is as

follows:

Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible in

determining taxable profit

Tax effect of expenses that are deductible in determining

taxable profit

There were no convertible/dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding at June 30, 2021 and June

30, 2020.

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company, which is based on:

Reconciliation between accounting profit and tax expense for the year 2020 is not prepared as the

Company is subject to minimum tax in the prior year.
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38 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The Company's exposure to interest rate risk on its financial assets and liabilities are summarized as follows:

Financial assets

Financial assets at amortised cost:

Long term deposits 1,513,450             -                    -                    -                    1,513,450             

Trade debts 6,890,929             -                    -                    -                    6,890,929             

Short term lending 7,637,000             -                    7,637,000             

Advances 11,647,702           -                    -                    -                    11,647,702           

Cash and bank balances 43,950,002           -                    -                    -                    43,950,002           

71,639,083           -                    -                    -                    71,639,083           

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortised cost:

Long term financing 299,036,657         -                    299,036,657    299,036,657    -                        

Trade and other payables 383,931,318         -                    -                    -                    383,931,318         

Mark up accrued -                        -                    -                    -                    -                        

Short term borrowings -                        -                    -                    -                    -                        

Liability against assets subject to finance

lease 682,967,975         -                    299,036,657    299,036,657    383,931,318         

On SOFP gap (611,328,892)       -                    (299,036,657)   (299,036,657)   (312,292,235)       

Off SOFP items

Financial commitments:

Letter of credits 671,784,194         -                    -                    -                    671,784,194         

Bank guarantee 55,883,140           -                    -                    -                    55,883,140           

727,667,334         -                    -                    -                    727,667,334         

Total Gap (1,338,996,226)    -                    (299,036,657)   (299,036,657)   (1,039,959,569)    

2020

Rupees

Financial assets

Financial assets at amortised cost:

Long term deposits 1,513,450             -                    -                    -                    1,513,450             

Trade debts 2,492,995             -                    -                    -                    2,492,995             

Advances 14,624,189           -                    -                    -                    14,624,189           

Cash and bank balances 59,248,231           -                    -                    -                    59,248,231           

77,878,865           -                    -                    -                    77,878,865           

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortised cost:

Long term financing 168,476,116         227,465            168,248,651    168,476,116    -                        

Trade and other payables 246,300,149         -                    -                    -                    246,300,149         

Mark up accrued 79,001,984           79,001,984       -                    79,001,984       -                        

Short term borrowings 80,639,335           80,639,335       -                    80,639,335       -                        

-                        -                    -                    -                    -                        

574,417,584         159,868,784    168,248,651    328,117,435    246,300,149         

On SOFP gap (496,538,719)       (159,868,784)   (168,248,651)   (328,117,435)   (168,421,284)       

Off SOFP items

Financial commitments:

Letter of credits 315,326,380         -                    -                    -                    315,326,380         

Bank guarantee 57,337,000           -                    -                    -                    57,337,000           

372,663,380         -                    -                    -                    372,663,380         

Total gap (869,202,099)       (159,868,784)   (168,248,651)   (328,117,435)   (541,084,664)       

Effective interest rates are mentioned in the respective notes to the financial statements.

Liability against assets subject to finance

lease

Interest/mark up bearing

Maturity upto 

one year

Maturity after 

one year
Sub-total

Total
Not interest / 

mark up bearing

2021

Interest/mark up bearing

Rupees

Sub-total
Maturity after 

one year

Maturity upto 

one year

Total
Not interest / 

mark up bearing
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39 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

39.1 Risk management policies

39.2 Credit risk

Exposure to credit risk

2021 2020

Description Rupees Rupees

Long term deposits 1,513,450        1,513,450           

Trade debts 6,890,929        2,492,995           

Short term lending 7,637,000        -                      

Advances 11,647,702      14,624,189         

Bank balances 43,753,155      58,997,590         

71,442,236      77,628,224         

The aging of gross trade receivables at the reporting date is:

Past due 90 days 6,890,929        2,492,995           

All the trade debts at statement of financial position date are domestic parties.

The Company’s objective in managing risks is the creation and protection of share holders’ value. Risk is

inherent in the Company’s activities, but it is managed through a process of ongoing identification,

measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. The process of risk management is

critical to the Company’s continuing profitability. The Company is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk

and market risk (which includes interest rate risk and price risk) arising from the financial instruments it

holds.

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counter parties

fail to perform as contracted and arises principally from trade and other receivables. The Company’s

policy is to enter into financial contracts with reputable counter parties in accordance with the internal

guidelines and regulator requirements.

The carrying amounts of the financial assets represent the maximum credit exposures before any credit

enhancements. Out of total financial assets of Rs. 71.639 million (2020: Rs. 77.878 million) the financial

assets which are subject to credit risk amounted to Rs. 71.442 million (2020: Rs. 77.628 million).The

carrying amounts of financial assets exposed to  credit risk at reporting date are as under:

To manage exposure to credit risk in respect of trade debts, management performs credit reviews taking

into account the customer's financial position, past experience and other factors. Where considered

necessary, advance payments are obtained from certain parties. Sales made to certain customers are

secured through letters of credit.

The exposure to banks is managed by dealing with variety of major banks and monitoring exposure limits

on continuous basis. The ratings of banks ranges from A to AAA.

The Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk

management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in

relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight role by

Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and adhoc reviews of risk management controls and

procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit Committee.

The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working capital with

a view to maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimize risk.
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Concentration of credit risk

39.3 Liquidity risk

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counter parties are engaged in similar business

activities or have similar economic features that would cause their abilities to meet contractual obligation

to be similarly affected by the changes in economic, political or other conditions. The Company believes

that it is not exposed to major concentration of credit risk. 

Impaired assets

During the year no assets have been impaired.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as

they fall due. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will

always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stress conditions,

without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation. The following are

the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including interest payments and excluding the impact of

netting agreements, if any:

Long term financing      299,036,657      299,036,657                   -                     -                     -    299,036,657                   -   

Short term borrowings                      -                        -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -   

Trade and other payables 646,450,842    646,450,842    646,450,842                   -                     -                     -                     -   

Mark up accrued -                   -                   -                                 -                     -                     -                     -   

-                   -                   -                                 -                     -                     -                     -   

     945,487,499      945,487,499  646,450,842                   -                     -    299,036,657                   -   

Long term financing      168,476,116      168,476,116                   -                     -                     -    168,476,116                   -   

Short term borrowings        80,639,335        80,639,335                   -      80,639,335                   -                     -                     -   

Trade and other payables      321,920,257      321,920,257  321,920,257                   -                     -                     -                     -   

Mark up accrued        79,001,984        79,001,984    79,001,984                   -                     -                     -                     -   

                     -                        -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -   

     650,037,692      650,037,692  400,922,241    80,639,335                   -    168,476,116                   -   

Liability against assets 

subject to finance lease

Liability against assets 

subject to finance lease

2021

(Rupees)

Contractual 

cash flows

Six months 

or less

Six to twelve 

months

One to two 

years

Two to five 

years

Over five 

years

Carrying 

amount

One to two 

years
2020

Carrying 

amount

Contractual 

cash flows

Six months 

or less

Six to twelve 

months

Two to five 

years

Over five 

years

(Rupees)
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39.4 Market risk

a) Currency risk

b) Interest rate risk 

2021 2020 2021 2020

Financial Liabilities

Fixed rate instrument

Short term borrowings 15% 15% -                  1,910,000           

Variable rate instrument

Long term financing 8% to 10% 8% to 10% 299,036,657    168,476,116       

Short term borrowings 8% to 10% 8% to 10% -                  80,639,335         

299,036,657    249,115,451       

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments 

100 bp 100 bp

Increase Decrease

As at June 30, 2021

Cash flow sensitivity - Variable rate financial liabilities 2,990,367        (2,990,367)          

As at June 30, 2020

Cash flow sensitivity - Variable rate financial liabilities 2,491,155        (2,491,155)          

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate

because of changes in market interest rates. Majority of the interest rate exposure arises from short

borrowings. At the balance sheet date the interest rate profile of the Company's interest-bearing financial

instruments is:

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have decreased / (increased) loss

for the year by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular

foreign currency rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for prior year.

Effective Rate

(In percent)

Profit and loss 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market price, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and

equity prices will effect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The

Company is not exposed to price risk.

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of financial asset or a liability will fluctuate due to a change

in foreign exchange rates. It arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions entered

in foreign currencies. The Company believes that it is not exposed to currency risk as there are no foreign

currency, financial assets or financial liabilities.

Carrying amount

(Rupees)

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on (loss) / profit for the year

and assets / liabilities of the Company.
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40 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

40.1

-

-

-

40.2

2021

Description Rupees

Freehold land 480,000,000       

Factory building 495,768,000       

Plant and Machinery 1,022,457,000    

1,998,225,000    

40.3 Fair value of land, buildings, plant and machinery are based on assumptions considered to be level 2 in

the fair value hierarchy due to significant observable inputs used in the valuation.

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is,

unadjusted) inputs.

Transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy are recognised at the end of the reporting period during

which the changes have occurred.

The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future

contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the Company for similar

financial instruments, if relevant.

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate

their fair values. Fair value is determined on the basis of objective evidence at each reporting date. The

financial instruments that are not traded in active market are carried at cost and are tested for impairment

according to IFRS 9. The carrying amount of trade receivables and payables is assumed to approximate

their fair values.

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in these financial statements

approximate their fair values.

The Company has revalued its freehold land, buildings, plant and machinery on October 22, 2020. Fair

value of freehold land, buildings, plant and machinery are based on the valuation carried out by an

independent valuer M/s K.G Traders (Private) Limited.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between

knowledgeable willing parties in arms length transactions.

Fair value hierarchy

IFRS 13 'Fair Value Measurement' requires the Company to classify fair value measurements and fair

value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements of fair value

hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset either

directly that is, derived from prices
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40.4

40.5 Interest rate used for determining fair value 

41 DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENT FOR ALL SHARE ISLAMIC INDEX

2021 2020

Rupees Rupees

Loans Placed under interest arrangement     299,036,657           90,534,258 

                     -               1,910,000 

Ijarah payment

        3,464,156             3,606,681 

Long term deposits Non-interest bearing         1,513,450             1,513,450 

Loss on sale of vehicle                      -                            -   

All sources of other income Disclosed in note 35         3,888,192             2,922,569 

Exchange gain Earned from actual currency                      -                            -   

Valuation techniques used to derive level 2 fair values - Plant and Machinery

ExplanationDescription

Had there been no revaluation, the net book value of the specific classes of operating assets have been

disclosed in note 6.3.2.

The interest rates used to discount estimated cash flows, when applicable, are based on the government

yield curve at the reporting date plus an adequate credit spread. For instruments carried at amortized cost,

since majority of the interest bearing instruments are variable rate based instruments, there is no

difference in carrying amount and the fair value. Further, for fixed rate instruments, since there is no

significant difference in market rate and the rate of instrument and therefore most of the fixed rate

instruments are of short term in nature, fair value significantly approximates to carrying value.

Following information has been disclosed with reference to disclosure requirements of fourth schedule of

the Companies Act, 2017 relating to "All Shares Islamic Index".

The Company has working relation with First Habib Modaraba under Islamic windows.

Placed under Shariah permissible 

arrangements

Valuation techniques used to derive level 2 fair values - Land and Building

There is no other bank balance / investments which carry any interest or markup 

Placed under Shariah permissible 

arrangements

K.G. traders carried out inspection/survey, detail enquiries and verifications from various estate agents,

brokers and builders/ developers and keeping in view the location of the property, utilization size, shape,

state of infrastructure and current trends in prices of real estate in the vicinity.

For the valuation of machineries installed/ available at premises, after taking its available specifications

such as make, model capacity, etc, and with the help of photographs, the valuers have enquired present

market value of similar machinery in new as well as in similar condition from various local authorised

dealers who deals in old and new similar machineries. Replacement value was then ascertained from

competitive rates of the machines, thereafter, an average depreciation factor was applied on the

replacement value of the machines.
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42 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

2021 2020

Rupees Rupees

    378,738,210         378,738,210 

    299,036,657         168,476,116 

                     -             80,639,335 

    299,036,657         249,115,451 

Gearing ratio 44% 40%

43 PLANT CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION

During the year, the tile production capacity attained was 4,353,170 sq. meters (2020: 1,913,763 sq.

meters) against annual manufacturing capacity of 5,760,000 sq. meters (2020: 5,760,000 sq. meters).

During the year, the increase in sale of local products were observed as there were restrictions imposed on

imported items due to ongoing  pandemic situation. 

The Board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market

confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The Board of Directors monitors the return

on capital, which the Company defines as net profit after taxation divided by total shareholders' equity.

The Board of Directors also monitors the level of dividend to ordinary shareholders. There were no

changes to the Company's approach to capital management during the year and the Company is not subject 

to externally imposed capital requirements.

Capital for the reporting periods under review is summarized as follows:

Long term financing

Short term borrowings

Equity
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44 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

a)

Chief  Chief

Executive Executive

4,214,608   1,053,000   4,650,651     9,918,259     2,088,284   844,358      4,212,105  7,144,747     

936,580      234,000      1,033,477     2,204,057     464,062      187,634      936,024     1,587,720     

4,214,608   1,053,000   4,650,651     9,918,259     2,088,284   844,358      4,212,105  7,144,747     

Total 9,365,796   2,340,000   10,334,779   22,040,575   4,640,630   1,876,350   9,360,234  15,877,214   

Number of persons 1 2 4 7 1 2 4 7

b)

  

2,340,000   2,340,000     1,876,350   1,876,350     

Number of persons 2 7 2 7

c)

Utilities

The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for remuneration, including all benefits to Chief Executive, Directors and Executives of the

Company is as follows:

2021 2020

Directors Executives Total Directors Executives Total

Rupees

Managerial remuneration

Rupees

House rent

The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for remuneration, including all benefits to Executive directors and Non executive directors of

the Company is as follows:

2021 2020

Executive Non Executive
Total

Executive Non Executive
Total

Directors Directors Directors Directors

5 5

No remuneration / benefits were paid to the non executive directors during the current year and preceding financial years. 

Managerial remuneration - -
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45 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

45.1

2021 2020

Rupees Rupees

7,241,564        8,594,013        

-                   -                   

-                   23,259,468      

7,121,941        2,600,000        

120,000           120,000           

933,752           848,866           

-                   -                   

-                   18,700,000      

15,714,033      20,510,786      

27,500,000      2,925,000        

-                   500,000           

       21,767,136 57,104,558      

       10,000,000 -                   

320,701           -                   

310,165,000    -                   

-                   12,845,000      

-                   33,446             

-                   16,345,000      

-                   10,550,936      

26,500,000      5,520,930        

24,100,000      283,930           

796,878           250,270           

45.2 Compensation to key management personnel

The related parties and associated undertakings of the Company comprise of associated companies,

directors and key management personnel. Transactions with related parties and associated undertakings

involve advance for working capital requirements. Year end balances are disclosed in relevant notes to the

financial statements. Transactions with related parties are as follows:

The details of compensation paid to key management personnel are shown under the heading of

"Remuneration of Chief Executive, Directors and Executive (note 44)". There are no transactions with key

management personnel other than under their terms of employment.

Rental for building

Short term borrowing received

Short term borrowing repaid

Utilities

Rent 

Purchase of Fixed Assets

Long term borrowing received

Long term loan repaid

Payment against purchases

Chief Executive

Markup on long term loan

Advances for land

Short term borrowing received

Short term borrowing repaid

Advance repaid

Loan and advances paid

Loan and advances received

Interest on short term lending

Long term financing -

Received 

Name of the related 

party
Relationship Transactions during the year 

Mr. Nadem Khalid Long term financing - Loan

repaid

Rawal Industrial 

Equipment 

(Private) Limited

Associated 

company by virtue 

of common 

directorship
Interest on short term

borrowings

Interest on short term 

borrowings

Toyota Rawal 

Motors (Private) 

Limited

Associated 

company by virtue 

of common 

directorship

Khalid & Khalid

Holdings (Pvt.) Ltd.

Associated 

company by virtue 

of common 

directorship

Interest on short term 

borrowings
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46 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

2021 2020

Numbers Numbers

Number of employees

At June 30, 764 546

Average during the year 653 416

47 IMPACT OF COVID-19

48 CORRESPONDING FIGURES

49 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

50 GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

The pandemic of COVID-19 that has rapidly spread all across the world has not only endangered

human lives but has also adversely impacted the global economy. Since March, 2020, the

Government of the Pakistan announced temporary lock downs from time to time,as a measure to

reduce the spread of the COVID–19. However, after implementing all the necessary Standard

Operating Procedures (SOPs) to ensure safety of employees, the Company henceforth continued

its operations in order to maintain business performance despite slowed down economic activity.

According to management’s assessment, there is no significant accounting impact of the effects of

COVID-19 in these financial statements. 

These financial statements were authorized for issue on 07 OCTOBER 2021 by the Board of

Directors of the Company.

Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary for the purpose

of comparison and for better presentation. However, no significant reclassifications were made

during the year.
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# Of Shareholders Total Shares Held

106                             1 to 100 6,086

591                             101 to 500 268,975

56                               501 to 1000 54,919

69                               1001 to 5000 186,029

11                               5001 to 10000 88,600

3                                 10001 to 15000 41,600

3                                 15001 to 20000 52,000

2                                 20001 to 25000 45,262

5                                 35001 to 40000 184,155

5                                 40001 to 45000 217,700

1                                 45001 to 50000 50,000

1                                 50001 to 55000 50,200

2                                 60001 to 65000 122,500

1                                 65001 to 70000 68,600

1                                 80001 to 85000 81,000

1                                 95001 to 100000 100,000

1                                 110001 to 115000 112,500

1                                 175001 to 180000 176,500

1                                 935001 to 940000 939,500

1                                 1955001 to 1960000 1,957,000

1                                 2315001 to 2320000 2,320,000

1                                 4430001 to 4435000 4,430,739

1                                 6065001 to 6070000 6,067,739

3                                 6750001 to 6755000 20,252,217

868                             37,873,821

FRONTIER CERAMICS LIMITED

Pattern of Shareholding

As of June 30, 2021

Shareholdings'Slab
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Categories of Shareholders Shareholders Shares Held Percentage

Directors and their spouse(s) and minor children
 MR. JAVED KHALID 2 1,957,500    5.17                

MR. OMER KHALID 2 6,750,739    17.82              

NADEEM KHALID 2 7,007,239    18.50              

 MRS. PERVEZ ASLAM 1 500               0.00                

SANAH KHALID 1 6,750,739    17.82              

SHAZIA KHALID 1 2,446            0.01                

AMERA KHALID 1 6,750,739    17.82              

NUMRAH KHALID 1 6,750,739    17.82              

ZIA KHALID 1 2,446            0.01                

Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties -                 -               -                  

NIT & ICP 1 40,200.00    0.11                

Banks Development Financial Institutions, Non Banking Financial Financial Institutions.1 68600 0.18                

Insurance Companies 2 142500 0.38                

Modarabas and Mutual Funds 1 14500 0.04                

General Public
a. Local 845 1594753 4.21                

Foreign Investors -                 -               -                  

OTHERS 6 40181 0.11                

Total 868 37,873,821  100.00            

Share holders holding 10% or more Shares Held Percentage

MR. OMER KHALID 6,750,739    17.84              

NADEEM KHALID 7,007,239    18.52              

SANAH KHALID 6,750,739    17.84              

AMERA KHALID 6,750,739    17.84              

NUMRAH KHALID 6,750,739    17.84              

Pattern of Shareholding
As of June 30, 2021

FRONTIER CERAMICS LIMITED

Page 82 



PROXY FORM 

 
 

I/We                                                                                                             of being a member(s) of FRONTIER CERAMICS 

LIMITED and a holder of _______________________________________________                                     ordinary 

Shares as per share Register Folio No.                          or CDC Participant ID No. _________________ 

Account No.                                      hereby appoint of                             who is also member of FRONTIER CERAMICS 

LIMITED Vide Folio No. ___________ or CDC Participant ID No.  Account No. ________ or failing him/her of 

__________ who is also member of Frontier Ceramics limited vide folio No. ______________ or CDC Participant ID No. 

Account No. _______________ as my/our proxy in my/our absence to attend and vote for me/us and on my /our behalf at 

the Thirty Ninth Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on October 28, 2021 and at any adjournment thereof. 

As witness my/our hand /seal this ______ day of ___________ 2021. 

 
Signed by said _____________________________ 
 
 
Witness:  _____________________________  Witness  __________________________ 

(Signature)      (Signature) 
 
Name:   _____________________________  Name   __________________________ 
 
Address:  _____________________________  Address:  __________________________ 
 
CNIC No:  _____________________________  CNIC No:  __________________________ 
 
 
 
 

Signature of member(s)  __________________________ 
 
 
 
Notes: 
 

1. This proxy form duly completed and signed must be received at the Registered Office of the Company, 29-

Industrial Estate, Jamrud Road, Peshawar not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting. 

2. No person shall act as proxy unless he himself is a member of the company, except that a corporation may appoint 

a person who is not a member. 

3. If a member appoints more than one proxy and more than one instruments of proxy are deposited by a member 

with the company, all such instruments of proxy shall be rendered invalid. 

 

FOR CDC ACCOUNT HOLDERS / CORPORATE ENTITIES 

In addition to the above the following requirements have to be met: 

a) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be 

mentioned on the form. 

b) Attested copy of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners shall be furnished with the proxy form. 

c) The proxy shall produce his / her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting. 

d)  In case of corporate entity, the Board of Director’s resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature shall 

be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the Company.  

 
Please affix 
Rs. 5/- (Revenue Stamp) 
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